
\\Colp-dc\colp\Administration\Meetings\Agendas\City Council\2019\2019-02-27 Regular Session Agenda.docx  1 

CITY OF LA PINE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Wednesday, February 27th, 2019 

5:30 p.m. Regular Session 
La Pine City Hall 

16345 Sixth Street, La Pine, Oregon 97739 

1. Call to Order

2. Establish Quorum

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Added Agenda Items
Any matters added to the Agenda at this time will be discussed during the “Other Matters” portion
of this Agenda or such time selected by the City Council

5. Public Comments

6. Consent Agenda
Information concerning the matters listed within the Consent Agenda has been distributed to each
member of the City Council for reading and study, is considered to be routine, and will be enacted
or approved by one motion of the City Council without separate discussion.  If separate discussion
is desired concerning a particular matter listed within the Consent Agenda, that matter may be
removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the regular agenda by request of any member of
the City Council.

a. Approval of Council Minutes
i. February 13, 2019 Meeting Minutes

b. Reimbursements
i. Approval of Council and Staff Reimbursements

7. Action on American Leadership Forum Payment

8. Appointment of Public Works Committee Members

9. Citizen Input Regarding Concerns of Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying in Violation of Rights –
Citizens Mike Love and Phil Klug

file://Colp-dc/colp/Administration/Meetings/Agendas/City%20Council/2019/2019-02-27%20Regular%20Session%20Agenda.docx


\\Colp-dc\colp\Administration\Meetings\Agendas\City Council\2019\2019-02-27 Regular Session Agenda.docx  2 

10. Community Funding Request
a. La Pine Middle School Lego Robotics Club
b. Citizen Input on The Wall That Heals – Michele Hoffman

11. Discussion on Frontier Days Land Use – Ann Gawith Presentation

12. Revised EDCO Memorandum of Understanding (Action Item)

13. Expenditure of Additional Community Development Block Grant Funds for Newberry Lift Station
(Action Item)

14. Update on Sewer Loan with Deschutes County

15. Review of Council Goals and Objectives FY 2019-20

16. Other Matters: Only those matters properly added to this Agenda under line item No. 4

17. Public Comments

18. Staff Comments

19. Mayor and Council Comments

20. Adjourn Meeting

Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this notice includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be considered or discussed at the above-referenced meeting.  This notice does not limit the ability 
of the City Council to consider or discuss additional subjects.  This meeting is subject to cancellation without notice.  The regular meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited 
to attend.  The public will not be permitted to attend the executive session; provided, however, representatives of the news media and designated staff will be allowed to attend the executive 
session.  Representatives of the news media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during the executive session, except to state the general subject of the executive 
session as previously announced.  No decision will be made in the executive session. The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Tracy Read (541-536-1432).  For deaf, hearing impaired, or speech 
disabled dial 541-536-1432 for TTY. 

file://Colp-dc/colp/Administration/Meetings/Agendas/City%20Council/2019/2019-02-27%20Regular%20Session%20Agenda.docx














































CITY OF LA PINE 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2019 

TO: La Pine City Council 

FROM:  Melissa Bethel, Staff 

SUBJECT: EDCO MOU Revision 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED (Check one): 

[ ] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[ ] No Action – Report Only [ ] Public Hearing 

[X ] Formal Motion  [ ] Other/Direction:  Discussion 

Councilors: 

On February 13th the City Council approved the hiring of a full time Sunriver/La Pine Economic 
Development Director.   

Pursuant to the motion, Council felt the MOU with EDCO should be updated to reflect the full-time 
position and reporting obligations.  In addition, some clean up of dates and minor revisions to language 
are shown.   

Suggested Motion: 
I move the City of La Pine approve the revised Memorandum of Understanding with EDCO.  

12



























CITY OF LA PINE 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2019 

TO: La Pine City Council 

FROM:  Melissa Bethel, Staff  

SUBJECT: Expenditure of unused CDBG funds 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED (Check one): 

[ ] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[ ] No Action – Report Only [ ] Public Hearing 

[X ] Formal Motion  [ ] Other/Direction:  Discussion 

Councilors: 

On January 23rd at the City Council workshop the Council heard from Anderson Perry and Andrew 
Spreadborough (CDBG Project Manager) that there would be unused funds from the CDBG grant which 
would need to be expended.  In an effort to maximize the City’s grant potential, staff began looking for 
ways to incorporate a project utilizing the funds that would make the most sense and be able to be 
incorporated into the existing project.  When looking at the growth potential for the Newberry 
Neighborhood, it was discovered the Newberry Lift Station is wholly inadequate (see attached Engineer 
analysis) to handle any additional growth.  Because Anderson Perry is already designing and constructing 
4 additional lift stations, the unused funds would allow for the design upgrade to the Newberry Lift 
Station.  This would be a savings of approximately $30,000 to the City.  Staff recommends the Council 
approve the unused portion of the CDBG funds to be utilized for the design upgrade to Newberry Lift 
Station.  Construction would need to be completed in two years and could be incorporated into the 
project with the potential to save the City additional funds. 

Motion: 
I move the City of La Pine utilize the unexpended funds from the Community Development Block Grant 
for designs upgrading the Newberry Lift Station.   

13



BECON, LLC www.beconeng.com 
549 SW Mill View Way, Suite 100, Bend, OR 97702 (541) 633-3140

Page 1 of 4 

February 11, 2019 

To: Jacob Obrist, Public Works Director 
City of La Pine 
16345 Sixth Street, La Pine, OR 97739 

From: Erik Huffman, PE, Engineer of Record 
Jose Banuelos, PE, Project Engineer 
Nick Hoffman, EIT, Engineering Associate 

Re: Lift Station Capacity Analysis – Planned Newberry Neighborhood 

Dear Jake, 

The capacity of the existing Newberry lift station has been analyzed for the Planned Newberry 
Neighborhood identified in the City of La Pine Comprehensive Plan (Zoning - Master Plan 
Residential). All sewage from each of the five existing and three planned sub-basins will flow by 
gravity to the Newberry lift station. This memo provides a thorough analysis of the Newberry lift 
station and provides improvement options for build-out conditions. 

Existing Sewer Flows 

There are five existing sub-basins in the Newberry Neighborhood, and all flow by gravity to the 
Newberry lift station which discharges to a common 4-inch force main along U.S. Highway 97 
(See Exhibit “A” attached). The force main discharges to the existing primary treatment lagoon 
#1 located at the City’s Wastewater Treatment Facility. The existing conditions of the Newberry 
Neighborhood were estimated based on the existing development of each of the five sub-basins 
(Table 1). 

Table 1: Existing Sewer Flows 
Development Units* Peak Flows** (gpm) 

Quadrant B 100 36 

Quadrant C – Crescent Creek Subdivision 103 37 

St Charles Hospital 8 3 

Housing Works 42 15 

Habitat for Humanity (Putney Place) 19 7 

Total Existing 272 97 
*Per Deschutes County GIS Tax Maps (April 2018) and data available on Deschutes County Dial.

**Assume average flow rate = 214 gal/unit/day, Peak Factor = 2.4 (estimates Max Wet-Weather flow) 



BECON, LLC www.beconeng.com 
549 SW Mill View Way, Suite 100, Bend, OR 97702 (541) 633-3140

Page 2 of 4 

The number of units were established using Deschutes County GIS tax maps and as built 
information available on Deschutes County Dial. Existing unit flows were derived from the 
average inflow data provided in the City’s 2016 Wastewater System Study Update (average flow 
rate = 107 gpcd x 2 people per unit = 214 gal/unit/day). St Charles Hospital generates 4,000 
gpd which is equivalent to 8 units. 

Build-Out Conditions 

There are three planned sub-basins in the Newberry Neighborhood, and all will flow by gravity 
to the Newberry lift station (See Exhibit “B” attached). The build-out conditions of the Newberry 
Neighborhood were estimated based on the planned development of each of the three sub-
basins (Table 2). 

Table 2: Planned Sewer Flows 
Development Units* Peak Flows** (gpm) 

Quadrant A 103 37 

Quadrant D 86 31 

Russell Subdivision 200 71 

Total Planned 389 139 

Existing 272 97 

Total Build-Out 661 236 
*Per Deschutes County GIS Tax Maps (April 2018) and data available on Deschutes County Dial.

**Assume 214 gal/unit/day, Peak Factor = 2.4 (estimates Max Wet-Weather flow) 

The existing lift station pumping capacity is 141.7 gpm. Based on the calculated peak build-out 
flows, the Newberry lift station will require an increase in pumping capacity. It is recommended 
that the pumps be upsized prior to or during the construction of the Quadrant A/D and Russell 
Subdivisions.    

Newberry Lift Station Improvements 

Pumps 
The existing lift station capacity per the Pentair Pump Performance Datasheet is 141.7 gpm @ 
48’ of total head. An increase in pumping capacity will be required to meet the calculated peak 
build-out flows. The new pumps will require a pumping capacity of at least 250 gpm @ 100’ of 
head. 

Wet Well 
The Newberry lift station was designed to satisfy the demands of Quadrant A – Crescent Creek 
Subdivision. The lift station now also includes sewer flows from the Quadrant B, St Charles 
Hospital, Housing Works, and Habitat for Humanity developments. The existing storage is a 6’ 
wide by 6.5’ deep (1375 gallons) wet well measured from the invert (in) to the base of the well 
(Figure 1). 



BECON, LLC www.beconeng.com 
549 SW Mill View Way, Suite 100, Bend, OR 97702 (541) 633-3140

Page 3 of 4 

Figure 1: Section View of Wetwell 

With the added flows from the Quadrant B, St Charles Hospital, Housing Works, and Habitat for 
Humanity developments the minimum working volume of the wet well is increased and the 
emergency volume is decreased. The table below shows the existing operating conditions and 
recommended design criteria for the wet well. 

Parameter 
Existing 

Operating 
Conditions 

Recommended 
Design Criteria for 

Build-Out 

Working Volume (gal) 582 2358** 

Emergency Volume (gal) 423 7073** 

Emergency Volume (min) 4.4 20 

Working Depth (ft) 2.75 4.01** 

Lead Pump On (ft)* 4216.50 4210.47** 

Lead Pump Off (ft)* 4213.75 4206.46** 

*See datum on as-built section view of the wet well
**Assumes new 10’ Diameter Wet Well 

The existing wet well does not provide adequate working capacity and only provides 4.4 
minutes of emergency storage. As shown in Table 1 the existing wet well does not have the 
storage capacity to meet the recommended design criteria for build-out conditions. It is 
recommended that a new wet well be designed to meet build-out conditions per the 
recommended design criteria. 

An alternate solution would be to install a storage tank to provide the recommended working 
and emergency volumes. An emergency generator is also recommended for backup power. 

Force Main 
The existing force main is 4-inches in diameter and approximately 5700-feet in length from the 
Newberry lift station to the City’s Wastewater Treatment Facility. Assuming wet-weather flows at 
10 ft/sec the force main capacity is 401 gpm. The force main must have capacity for the 
Newberry and Wickiup lift stations. The Wickiup lift station operates at 90gpm @ 110ft of head. 



BECON, LLC www.beconeng.com 
549 SW Mill View Way, Suite 100, Bend, OR 97702 (541) 633-3140

Page 4 of 4 

Assuming that the new pumps at the Newberry Lift station do not exceed 311 gpm no upsize will 
be required or necessary. 

Recommendations 

The Newberry lift station does not have the capacity to meet future (build-out) sewer demands. 
An increase in both pumping and storage capacity is necessary. 

Lift Station Upgrades 

BECON recommends the following upgrades: 

1. Efficiency: Upgrade from 1-Phase to 3-Phase for higher efficiency if feasible

2. Backup Power: Install Emergency Generator

3. Storage: Install new wet well to meet recommended design criteria

a. Alternately – install storage tank and size accordingly to meet the recommended

design criteria

4. Pumping Capacity: Install new pumps – preliminary analysis requires 10hp pumps

Conclusions 

Based on the calculated increase in demand at build-out, the Newberry lift station will require an 
increase in pumping and storage capacity. The recommended improvements to the Newberry 
lift station are provided in this document. Based on storage capacity alone it is recommended 
that the City upgrade or replace the wet well prior to the development of 21 units within 
Quadrant B, St Charles Hospital, Housing Works, and Habitat for Humanity developments (at 
least 10 minutes of working storage volume).    

If you have any questions, please contact me. 

Sincerely,  

Erik J. Huffman, PE, Engineer of Record 
Ehuffman@beconeng.com 
BECON www.beconeng.com 
549 SW Mill View Way, Suite 100, Bend, OR 97702 
Phone (541) 633-3140 



S11 T22S R10E S12 T22S R10E

S2 T22S R10E
S1 T22S R10E

DATE: 2/11/2019 SCALE: 1" = 1000' DRAWN BY: NAH PROJ: 13744.82

549 SW MILL VIEW WAY

SUITE 105

BEND, OREGON 97702

(541) 633-3140

www.beconeng.com

EXHIBIT "A" - EXISTING DEVELOPMENT

FOR:

CITY OF LA PINE

PO BOX 2460

16345 SIXTH STREET

LA PINE, OR 97739

1,000 FEET

SECTION 11, T. 22 S., R. 10 E., W.M.
DESCHUTES COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH

LEGEND
EXISTING DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUADRANT B - 100 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUADRANT C - (CRESCENT CREEK) 103 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSING WORKS - 42 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUTNEY PLACE - 19 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOSPITAL - 8 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL EXISTING UNITS:	272272



S11 T22S R10E S12 T22S R10E

S2 T22S R10E
S1 T22S R10E

DATE: 2/112019 SCALE: 1" = 1000' DRAWN BY: NAH PROJ: 13744.82

549 SW MILL VIEW WAY

SUITE 105

BEND, OREGON 97702

(541) 633-3140

www.beconeng.com

EXHIBIT "B" - PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

FOR:

CITY OF LA PINE

PO BOX 2460

16345 SIXTH STREET

LA PINE, OR 97739

1,000 FEET

SECTION 11, T. 22 S., R. 10 E., W.M.
DESCHUTES COUNTY, OREGON

NORTH

LEGEND
EXISTING DEVELOPMENT

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUADRANT A - 103 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUADRANT D - 86 UNITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL PLANNED EDUs:	389389



CITY OF LA PINE 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date: February 27, 2019 

TO: La Pine City Council 

FROM:  Melissa Bethel, Staff  

SUBJECT: Inherited Sewer District Loan with County 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED (Check one): 

[ ] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[X ] No Action – Report Only [ ] Public Hearing 

[  ] Formal Motion  [ ] Other/Direction:  Discussion 

Councilors: 

Last month I received the attached La Pine Special Sewer District Note (LPSSD Note) from the County as 
an FYI:  I want to bring it to the Council’s attention for informational purposes and to give an update 
regarding the loan moving forward.    

Background information: 

In 2003, the Sewer District and County entered into a contract (see attached contract 2004-092- this is 
the last revised of several) to bring services to the Newberry Neighborhood (specifically the Pahlisch 
Development).  The County received an EPA grant of $433,700 to aid in the project which cost a total of 
$1,564,050.  The original loan had an interest rate of 4.5%.  The contract states all SDC’s from the 
Newberry Neighborhood would be collected by the County to pay off the loan.  In exchange for the 
$433,700 grant to the Sewer District, the County discounted Pahlisch Homes $1,446 in SDCs for the first 
300 homes.    

Subsequently, development stalled during several years in which the interest from the loan kept 
accruing (approximately $40,000 year).  Currently there is still a total balance owed of $808,546.52 even 
though the County has collected a total of $883,287.94 in SDCs.   

Current: 

There has been an increased interest in the Newberry Neighborhood by several developers which has 
caused the City to look at existing infrastructure.  The Newberry Lift Station which was a part of the 
infrastructure put in by the loan, is wholly inadequate to take on more development.  The lift station will 

14



need immediate upgrading and the City is working to solve the issue as you are all aware.  However, 
without SDC’s from the Newberry Neighborhood, the City is put in an unfortunate financial obligation.  
Consequently, Staff met with the County and came away with what appears to be a solid compromise 
moving forward.  It was discovered the County has a separate Bond loan which was refinanced several 
years ago down to approximately 2.8% interest and is a lower balance than the loan the City inherited 
from the Sewer District.  Tentatively, (both the Council and County Commissioners must be in 
agreement and a separate meeting with both boards will be held to discuss the issue) the resulting 
tentative compromise for discussion would result in: 

1. Reduce the loan amount down to what the bond loan sits at currently (approx. $730,000)

2. Reduce the interest rate to the ~2.8%

3. Split future SDC’s in the Newberry Neighborhood with the City.

Staff feels this is a good compromise for moving forward and will keep the Council updated on the 
future joint meeting with the County Commissioners.   



"w
LEGAL COUNSEL

For Recording Purposes Only

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AG REEMENT BETWEEN
LA PINE SPECIAL SEWER DISTRICT and DESCHUTES COUNTY

FOR EXTENSTON OF SEWER TO THE NEWBERRY NEIGHBORHOOD

Contract No.200tl-092

The LaPine Special Sewer District of Deschutes County, Oregon (the "District') and Deschutes
County, Oregon (the "Count/) agree as follows:

1. REGITALS:

The parties recite:

1.1. ORS 190.003 to 190.110 authorize the County and the District to enter into an
intergovernmental agreement for the performance of any and all functions and activities that a
party to the agreement has the authority to perform.

1.2. The County owns approximately 518 acres north of the La Pine Urban Unincorporated
Community that is to be developed as part of the County's Transferable Development Credit
program and this property is formally known as the Newberry Neighborhood.

1.3. The County's Comprehensive Plan Zoning Code provisions for the Newberry Neighborhood
call for the area to be developed as four separate neighborhoods with four development
quadrants in each neighborhood.

1.4. On August 6, 2003; the County entered into a contract with Pahlisch Homes Development, lnc.
("Pahlisch Homes") whereby Pahlisch Homes would purchase from the County and develop
the land in the first quadrant ('Quadrant 2c") in accordance with the County's intent for the
Newberry Neighborhood.

1.5. As the part of the sales agreement with Pahlisch Homes, the County agreed to provide the
necessary public sewer facilities and connections for Quadrant 2c development, which
consists of approximately 32.41 acres and includes connections for approximately 107 EDUs.

1.6. The cost of enlarging the District's sewer facilities to accommodate a portion of the Newberry
Neighborhood was in part funded by a Federal Grant from the United States Environmental
Proiection Agency ("EPA") of approximately $433,700, awarded to the County, which funds
have been appropriated, but not yet been received.

Page '1 of 8 - lntergovernmental Agreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County
Contract No. 2004-{92 (03110104)



1.7. On August 28, 2002, the County and the District executed an lntergovemmental Agreement,
Deschutes County Agreement No. 2002-302 ('lGA 2002-302") in which the County would pay
the District for providing sewer facilities and services for the first 300 EDUs in the Newberry
Neighborhood although the area is outside the District's boundaries.

1.8. One of the tasks in IGA 2OO2-302 undertaken by the County was the completion of a Septage
Management and Effluent lrrigation Plan ("the Plan").

1.9. The Plan, prepared by HGE, lnc., the engineering firm hired by the County, determined that a
sewer system extension to the Newberry Neighborhood could accommodate the entire
neighborhood, estimated to encompass approximately 1700 EDUs, for a lesser dollar amount
per EDU than had been estimated under IGA 2002-302 but for a higher totalcost.

1.10. According to the Plan, the estimated total cost to accommodate the extension of sewer service
to the entire Newberry Neighborhood is $ 1,564,050.

1.11. The County desires to aid the District in constructing the increased sewer capacity for the
Newberry Neighborhood through the transfer of the Federal Grant funds (conditioned upon
District's acceptance of grant obligations) and through a County Loan to the District of
approximatelY $1, 1 30,350.

'1.12. Under lGA2OO2-302, Responsibilities 3. a., c., and h. have been completed andlthe parties
desire to delete the remaining Responsibilities and replace them with those in this lGA.

On or about December 1, 2003, the County and the District entered into an lntergovernmental
Agreement, County Contract No. 2003-495 ('lGA 2003-495"), in which the County agreed to
collect all SDCs imposed on single-family dwellings for the District for a fee of $16.00 per
EDU.

1.13.

1.14. Both the County and the District find it beneficial to enter into this IGA in order to allow the
District to provide sewer facilities and services to the Newberry Neighborhood.

1.15. On November 12,2003 the Deschutes County Board of County Commissioners approved the
Newberry Neighborhood's annexation to the District conditioned upon the signing of this IGA
providing for sewer facilities and services to the Newberry Neighborhood;

2,. EFFECTIVE DATE/DURATION

This lntergovernmental Agreement (the "lGA") takes effect when it is signed by the County and the
District. Except as provided in Sections 6.1 and 7, this IGA will terminate only after both parties have
fulfilled their obligations under this lGA.

3. FUNDING.

3.1. Grant. The County will transfer its EPA grant of approximately $433,700 (the'Grant') to the
District. The District will use those funds to construct and complete the Prgject described in
Section 4 of this IGA (the "Project'). The County will transfer the Grant funds to the District
when:

Page 2 of 8 - lntergovernmental Agreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County
Contract No. 2004-092 (03110104)



3.1.1. The District has obtained all necessary permits for the Project;

3.1.2. The District has received construction bids that are reasonably acceptable to the
County and indicate that Project can be completed with funds available to the District;

3.1.3. The District agrees in writing with the County that the District will comply with the
Environmental Protection Agency's Grant requirements; and,

3.1.4. The County and the District obtain any required federal or state approvals for the
transfer of the Grant funds.

3.2. Loan

3.2.1. Promptly after the Grant funds are transferred to the District, the County will loan the
District up to $1 ,130,350 to pay for costs of the Project. This loan (the "Loan') will bear
interest,at4.50% percentperannurn, compounded annually. The Countywill advance
Loan funds to the District upon receipt of written requests from the District's engineer.
Each request shall state that the amounts requested are reasonably required to pay
Project costs that are due within fourteen business days after the request is filed with
the County

3.2.2. The first $354,845 of the Loan made to the District under Section 3.2 shall constitute
matching funds for the Grant, and shall be spent by the District in compliance with the
requirements of the Grant;

3.2.3. The District will be obligated to repay the Loan only from systems development
charges imposed by the District in the Newberry Neighborhood ('SDCs").

(a) The County will:

(i) collect all SDCs on single-family dwellings until the Loan is repaid;

(ii) be entitled to keep a collection fee equal to $16.00 for each single-family
dwelling ("SDC"); and,

(iii) will apply the remaining SDC revenues, and any SDC revenues
received from the District pursuant to Section 3.2.3(d) and (e), to pay the
Loan and the District as provided in this lGA.

(b) The District shall:

(i) notify the County promptly when it collects any SDC revenues that are
not for single-family dwellings; and,

(ii) shall transmit all SDC revenues it collects to the County, until the Loan
is paid in full.

(c) The County is only obligated to apply SDC revenue to repay the Loan.

(i) The District may, upon prior written consent of the County, reduce the
amount of any SDCs it currently imposes so long as all appropriate
statutory and local procedures are followed.

Page 3 of 8 - lntergovernmental Agreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County
Contract No. 2004-{92 (03110104)



(ii) Except to the extent required by changes in Oregon law, the District will
not delay the time for payment of the SDCs or amend its SDC ordinance
in any other way that might limit the District's ability to repay County or
otherwise jeopardize the District's obligations under this lGA.

(iii) The District will vigorously defend any proceeding to reduce its SDC
charges.

(iv) Pursuant to ORS 288.594 the District hereby pledges all SDC revenues
for the benefit of the County to pay the Loan. The District shall not grant
any liens or pledges of its SDC revenues which are equal or superior to
the lien of the pledge granted to the County in this subsection.

(d) For the SDCs for the first 300 EDUs of development in the Newberry
Neighborhood, the District will discount the SDC rate charged to the County by
$1445.67 per EDU. This represents the total Grant amount divided by the 300
EDUs. The Coun$ will apply the balance of those SDCs, minus if applicable, to
pay the Loan.

(e) All SDC payments after the first 300 EDUs will be applied by the County to pay
the Loan, until the Loan is paid in full. All SDG payments after the Loan is paid
in fullwill be paid to the District.

lf the District is not in default, the obligation of the District to pay the Loan will
terminate in fifty years, even if the Loan is not fully paid.

3.3. The County shall pay or reimburse the District for all costs relating to construction of the pump
station described in the 'La Pine Special Sewer District Contract Documents for the
Construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant lmprovements and Wastewater Pump
Station" by HGE lnc. which is dated June 2003 (the "Construction Documentsn, up to a
maximum of $117,500. The County may require the District to provide documents reasonably
demonstrating that the District paid the costs for which reimbursement is requested, and that
the costs were paid for the pump station as described in the Construction Documents.

3.4. Costs. The District will pay for the County's costs of special financial counsel to prepare this
lGA, up to a maximum fee of $5,000. The District may pay these costs from Loan proceeds.

4. THE PROJECT

The District will construct the wastewater treatment plant improvements and all pipes necessary to
serve the wastewater pump station (the "Prqject") as described in the January 2003 contract
documents prepared by HGE lnc. for Project ffi3J7 ("Construction Documents"). The District shall
not change the Project in any way that would materially affect the ability of the District to serve the
Newberry Neighborhood, delay the completion date, or serve the Newberry Neighborhood in

compliance with the law and prudent utility practice unless the District first obtains the written approval
of the County. The County shall construct the pump station necessary to serve Quadrant 2 in the
Newberry Neighborhood.

4.1. The District will hire HGE, lnc. as the contract administrator for the Project in compliance with
the District's public contracting rules governing personal service contracts.

4.2. The County will be entitled to review and approve all contract administrator and construction
contracts for the Project.

Page 4 of 8 - lntergovernmental Agreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County
Contract No. 2004-092 (03110104)

(f)



4.3

5.

.5.1.

4.4. The District will provide sewerage service to Quadranl2c by July 1 , 2004, and will maintain
this service as long as the District remains in operation.

4.5. The District shall provide sewer services to the New Neighborhood at the location identified in

the Construction Documents

4.6. lf the costs:of the Project exceed the amount of the Grant and the Loan, the District will pay the
costs of completing the Project from its own revenues.

4.7 The District will maintain and reserye sufficient treatment capacity to serve the Newberry
Neighborhood as that neighborhood develops, and will, at the District's expense, provide any
additional treatment capacity that is required to allow the District to serve the Newberry
Neighborhood and the District's other customers.

The District will use its best efforts to complete the Project by January 1, 2005, and will

substantially complete the Project so that it is capable of providing service no later than May 1,

2005.

The Pump Station.

The District will construct the wastewater pump station identified in the document entitled 'La
pine Special Sewer District Contract Documents for the Construction of the Wastewater
Treatment Plant lmprovements and Wastewater Pump Station' dated June 30, 2003 and will
take ownership of the pump station.

Those contract documents shall be amended to require that the costs of the wastewater pump
station be separated in the bids.

The District shall complete the pump station no later than the completion of the Project
pursuant to ParagraPh 4.3.

6. Default.

lf the County fails to provide the Grant funds described in Section 3.1 or the Loan funds
described in Section 3.2, this IGA will terminate and the District and the County will be
released from their obligations under this lGA.

5.2

5.3.

6,1.

6.2. lf the District fails to comply with its material obligations'under this lGA, and does not cure the
failure within thirty (30) days after the County notifies the District in writing and demands that
the failure be cured, the County may exercise all or any of the following remedies:

6.2.1. The County may sue the District for damages.

6.2.2. The County may seek injunctive relief'

6.2.9. The County may increase the interest rate on the Loan to an annual rate of Six and
Fifty Hundredths percent (6.500lo), effective beginning on the date of the District's
failure.

6.2.4. The County may require the District to pay the Loan from other District revenues. lf the
County requires this remedy, the district shall repay the unpaid principal amount of the
Loan in substantially equal semiannual installments sufficient to amortize the unpaid

page S of 8 - lntergovernmental Agreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County
Contract No. 2004-092 (03l1OlO4)



7

6.3

7.1

7.2.

7.3.

principal amount of the Loan, with interest at an annual rate of Six and Fifty
Hundredths percent (6.50%) over twenty years.

6.2.5. The County may complete the Project and charge the District for its costs, which the
District shall pay on demand

Exercise of any remedy granted to a party in this IGA shall not preclude that party from
exercising any other remedy.

TERMINATION

The ,GA 2OO2-302 between the parties, County Contract No. 2002-302, dated August 28,
2003 is hereby terminated by mutual consent of the parties.

The Parties may terminate this IGA at any time, but only by a written agreement that is
specifically approved by the governing body of each party.

This IGA shall terminate on October 1, 2004 unless the transfers described in Section 3.1 and
3.2have been made to the District by that date.

7.4. Except as provided in Section 3.2.3(f), this IGA may not othenryise be terminated untilthe Loan
described in Section 3.2 has been paid in full, and the District has paid any other amounts this
IGA requires it to pay to the County.

8. INDEMNIFICATION.

8.1. To the extent permitted by Article Xl, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon
Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 through 30.300, County shall defend, save, hold harmless and
indemnify the District and its officers, employees and agents from and against all claims, suits,
actions, losses, damages, liabilities costs and expenses of any nature resulting from or arising
out of, or relating to the activities of County or its officers, employees, contractors, or agents
under this Contract.

8.2. To the extent permitted by Article Xl, Section 10, of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon
Tort Glaims Act, ORS 30.260 through 30.300, the District shall defend, save, hold harmless
and indemnify the County and its officers, employees and agents from and against all claims,
suits, actions, losses, damages, liabilities costs and expenses of any nature resulting from or
arising out of, or relating to the activities of the District or its officerq employees, coitractors,
or agents under this lGA.

8.3. The District shall include a provision in the contract with all construction contractors for the
sewer facilities for the Newberry Neighborhood the following:

To the fullest extent authorized by law Contractor shall defend, save, hold
harmless and indemnify the County and its officers, employees and
agents from and against all claims, suits, actions, losses, damages,
liabilities costs and expenses of any nature resulting from or arising'out
ol or relating to the activities of Contractor'or its officers, employees,
contractors, or agents under this Contract.

Page 6 of 8 - lntergovernmentalAgreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County
Contract No. 2004-092 (03110104)



9. MISCELLANEOUS

9.1. Assignment. Neither this IGA nor any of the rights granted by this IGA may be assigned or
transfened by either party except that County may assign any agreements for installment
payments of sewer SDCs previously entered into by County and District

g.2. Binding Effect. The terms of this IGA shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of
the parties and each of their respective administrators, agents, representatives, successors
and assigns.

Agency And Partnership. Neither party is, by virtue of this lGA, a partner nor joint venturer
with the other party and neither party shall have any obligation with respect to the other party's
debts or liabilities of whatever kind or nature.

9.3.

9.9

9.4. Requirements Of Funding Source And Federal And State Laws, Statutes, Rules, Regulations,
Executive Orders And Policies. Additionally, any requirements, conditions or limitations arising
under the terms of any grant funding source or required pursuant to any Federal or State law,
statute, rule, regulation, executive order or policy that are applicable to this IGA shall apply to
this IGA and the Project. The restrictions cunently known to the parties (other than the *Grant

Agreement, which is not yet available) are attached as Exhibit A.

g.5. No Waiver Of Claims. The failure by any party to enforce any provision of this IGA shall not
constitute a waiver by that party of that provision or of any other provision of this lGA.

9.6. Severability. Should any provision or provisions of this IGA be construed by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be void, invalid or unenforceable, such construction shall affect only
the provision or provisions so construed, and shall not affect, impair or invalidate any of the
other provisions of this IGA which shall remain in full force and effect.

9.7. Headings. The headings of this IGA are for convenience only and shall not be used to
construe or interpret any provisions of this lGA.

9.8. Applicable Law. This IGA shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of
the State of Oregon.

Entire Agreement. This IGA constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties concerning
the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements
or understandings between the parties , if any, whether written or oral, concerning the subject
matter of this IGA which are not fully expressed herein. This IGA may not be modified or
amended except by a writing signed by both parties.

Dated tnis l54t ltor./, 2OO4 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

MI DALY, CHAI

A z
IS R. LUKE, COMMISSIONER

Page T of 8 - lntergovernmental Agreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County
Contract No. 2004-092 (O3110104)

ng



Dated this 2004 LA PINE SPECIAL SEWER DISTRICT

page I of 8 - lntergovernmental Agreement Between La Pine Sewer District and Deschutes County- 
Contract No. 2004-092 (03110104')



p t,

Six Affirmative Steps
to assure

MBEA /BE/SDBE Participation

1. lnclude qualified small, minority and women's businesses on solicitation lists

2. Assure that these businesses are solicited whenever they are potential sources

3. Divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into small tasks or quantities
to permit maximum participation of these businesses

4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the work permits, which will encourage these
businesses to ParticiPate

5. Using the services of the Federal agencies such as the Small Business
Administration, the Office of Minority Business Enterprises of the Department of
Commerce, and/or State and Localagencies to support further participation

6. Requiring your contractors, if they award subcontracts, to comply with the affirmative
steps above.

EXHIBIT 4 ,oGE ./



Eps

5U33e633:rC P.l

".s ,o
z
UJolr

g EP
tpn

tI. S. Environmental Protection Agency

Oregott Opera tions Offi ce

81 I S.W. Sixth Aventte

Portland, Oregon 97204

Fax: (503) 326-3399

Confirrn: (503) 326-3250

FAC SIMILE TRANSMISSION
/ "t-!-;,agesDate:

To:

Location:

Fax #:

From:

..i...rh. +9 r{., r..-. ., nr-.- t. i.r-., r. t!,r j!.-, . . !

EXHIBIT PAGE
a-.L



, r E-.l lJ 4l-uT llJ- agltt' r. r' vvu
.t
,l

\, vitiT 6D rt J.tv P.z

Edltorr:

Jus6
Wendy Warron

Progrrnr:
Oroup:

lnfrastrucluro

NEPA Gompllancg 
' ,..,, .r:. .. . !-.;. . j ....-;.

project rirork will nol bb hltated untl sfler,fie grantee has complled wilh lho requlrern€nts ol lhe National
Envlronmenlal PollcY Act (NEPA).

Gonlractotl

Granl parlidpallon in contrasl cpsts ar€ not au0torized mlilthe EPA Project Otficer revlews the grantee's
proposeO procuremant m€thods and approves lhe grantee's proposed award lo codractors (s.9.,
proiessional servbes and corsbuction oonbaclor).

Payment Requesrs

payments shall be made on a reimburcable basls. Al reimbursablecosts ghall !e documented,
realonabb, necessary, and ajleable to.the prqrect. The EPA granl b to fund S5:a ol the eligible msB
and he granlee is lo tund $'h ol fte eligible cosls.

Ail payments shall be submitted lo lhe U.S. EPA Beglon 10, GrantsArknlnietiallon Unll, OMP-145, 1200
Sixth Ave., Saatlle, WA 98101-1128 ilh acoPy to lhe EPA Ptoject OlioEr.

The lirst paimenl requesl whk*r lncludes costs lrorn the construcllon contraclor for the pro1*f
rnust be ipircved bylhe EPA ProJect Olfiaer belore payment is made. Supponhg documentition 1e.g.,
descrlptlon of worlu caPl ol invoice andcanceledched<) must accompany thb initlal payment rcquest. ll
satislactory, sdrsequenl paymont reguests (up lo lhe 95% grant amounl) need not lndud€ supporting
documentitlon, ane to be forrard to EPA Flegion l0 Grants Admlnlstratirn Unil. and wlll not rcqulre the
EPA ProJecf Olficer's appnoval. The grantee, howevor, agress that ils records wlll mainlain the
documeritallon requlred by Federal regdalions lo suppotl all granl eligible cosls.

Payrnents wil nol be made belond 95% of the EPA grant unlll after: the city's cerlificalion of oompptlm ls
rec'oived; flnat lnspaction ls complete and deflclencies are conected to EPA's sadsfactbn; contracto/s and
granlge's release lorms ane submltted lo EPA.

Progress RePorts

The grantee ls lo submll quarlerly perfonnance reporls whlch conlah the status ol the proJecl that ls a
comparison of the actual.accompllshmonts lo the obJeaive €slablished for the budgel period. These

EnHIBIT 4 PAGE 3



F&B' 1S ?OO4 10:zgRlt EFR ooo 50332633s,9 P.3
q

reoorts will be due withln 30 days of the reporting perlod wtrbh ara on June 30, September 30, December

31, and tllarch 31.

Thc oranto€ may elect lo subslitute quarterly reports wfth more lr€quent reporting (e.g., weekly contrac.lor

#"iing rlnutei). fne grantes shall obtain dre EPA ProJect Office/s approvalforsuch substltuUors. (40

cFF 31.40).

Retbntion ol Records And Audlts

The orantee agr€es to maiilatn all proJecl reoords untll atlclaims, litigaflon, audits or other actions have

UlJn"-*f"iia ", 
for at least 3 three lears, wttichever P€rbd ls lalar (41 CFR 51.42).

Prc.awsrd Cocts

pre-award costs incurred mora lhan 90 days prlor to award Fqulre-lhe approval.of the EPA Award Offklal.

branf reclplents lncur pre.award coslg a! lhelr own risks (i.s., EPA ls under no obligation to reimburso

such cost illof arry reason lhe reclplent doas not recelve an award or if the award is less than anlicpaled

ffiil;d.q;ate to ioversuch cossi'

Grant Glosaoul
.

The granree witt comply w1h rhepibviifrri .ot'silipatt- O'4O..CFR Parl31.

31

uant

ExHtBff 4 PAGE



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (EPA) REGION 10
CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS

GENERAL. The construction work is being partially funded by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Therefore,
all construction work under this contract(s) is(are) subject to applicable Federal laws and regulations..

All applicable Federal, state, and local laws are to be complied with during bidding and construction. The contractor is
responsible for its own and its employees' acts ff omissions under the laws and the conhact. The contractor and its
subconfactor are jointly and equally responsible for the acts or omissions of the subcontractor and its employees.

EPA grantees and subgrantees are responSible for the successful administration and completion of Federally assisted
projects; EPA is not a party to any of the grantee's and/or subgrantees' subagreements for the construction of the proposed
project. Reviews and approvals by EPA are: for administrative purposes only; used to determine compliance with Federal
laws and regulations; and used to determine the level of Federal participation.

COMPLIAI\ICE WITH STATE & LOCAL LAWS. The construction of the project, including the letting of
subcontacts, shall conform to the requirements of state and local laws and ordinances. If such requirements conflict with
Federal laws and regglations, Federal laws and regulations shall prevail (e.g., retention of records).

MAINTENAI\CE OF DilSTING TREATMENT WORKS DURING CONSTRUCTION. Where construction
consists of replacement of,, or modification to, ail existing sewer line, pump station or waste treatment worls, the confiactor
shall provide for maintaining that works conveyance of wastes and its existing level of heatment at all times during
constuction.

ACCESS TO CONSTRUCTION SITE. The contractor shall provide for access to all sites on conhact work for duly
authorized rgpresentatives from EPA and the state.

ACCESS TO RECORDS. The contractor shall provide for access for duly authorized representatives from EPA and state
to any books, documents, papers, and records of the contractor which are pertinent to that specific contract for the purpose
of making audit, examination, exerts, and transcriptions.

RECORDS RETENTION, The grantee, subgrantees, and prime contractors shall retain all records for three years after
final payments or other pending matters (e.g., litigation and audit) are closed, whichever is longer.

BONDING REQUIREMENTS. Bidders on conhacts less than $100,000 shall be subject to state and local requirements
relating to bid guarantees and bonding requirements

For contracts and subcontracts exceeding $100,000, EPA may accept the bonding policy and requirements of the grantee or
subgrantee if EPA made a determination that its interest is adequately protected. If such a determination has not been
made, each contractor awarded a construction contract in excess of $100,000 shall meet the minimum requirements as
follows:

Bid Guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five porc€nt of the bid price.
Performance and Payment Bond on part of the contractor for 100
percent ofthe conhact price.

AWARDING OF SUBAGREEMENTS. For sealed bids and where two or more responsible bidders are willing and able
to compete effectively, grantees or subgrantees will make awards to the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder whose bid
conforms with all the material, terms and conditions of the invitation for bids.

In instances where competition by sealed bids is determined inadequate (e.g., only one sealed bid is received), the grantee
or subgrantee must obtain EPA approval prior to executing noncompetitive procurement conhacts. Otherwise, EPA
funding of the project maybe withdrawn.

EXHIBIT PAGE 5



2

SETTLEMENT OF PROCUREMENT ISSUES. Grantees and subgrantees alone willbe responsible for the settlement
of all contracts and administrative issues arising out of procurement. Grantees and subgrantees will have procedures to
handle and resolve procurement issues and shall disclose information regarding such issues to EPA. Such issues include,
but are not limited to, source evaluation, bid protests, disputes, and claims.

EPA is not a party to any of the grantee's or subgrantee's subagreements for the construction of the proposed project.
EPA's funding of this project does not relieve the grantee or subgrantee of any contractual responsibilities unier its
contracts. Reviews and approvals by EPA are: for adminisfrative purposes only; used to determine compliance with
Federal laws and regulations; and used to determine the level of Federal participation

EPA will not substitute its judgement for that of the grantee or subgrantee unless the matter is primarily a Federal concem.
Violations of law will be referred to the local, state, or Federal authority having jurisdiction. Reviews by EpA will be

limited to the violations specified below. All other issues received by EPA wi[6e refened to the grantee or subgrantee.

Violations of Federal law or regulations and the standards. Violations of State or local law will be under
the jurisdiction of state cr local authorities; and
violations of the grantee's or subgrantee's protest procedures for failure to
review a complaint or protest.

BID PROTESTS. Grantees and subgrantees will have procedures to resolve bid protest appeals and shall disclose
information regarding the protest to EPA and the state. A protestor must exhaust all adminishative remedies at the
grantee's and subgrantee's level before pursuing a protest with EPA.

Only parties with a financial interest which are adversely affected by the grantee's or subgrantee's decision on the initial
bid protest may file a bid protest appeal with EPA. EPA will not substitute its judgement for the grantee or
subgrantee unless the matter is primarily a Federal concern. Reviews byEPA will be limited to the violations
described under the preceding section entitled "Settlement of Procurement Issues". Violations of law will be refened to the
appropriate local or state authority.

Bid protest appeals must be filed with the Offrce of Regional Counsel, EPA Region 10, ORC-158, EpA, Region 10, 1200
Sixth Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101. A protest appeal must:

' Be a written complaint regarding the grantee's or subgrantee's determination
of a bid protest aPpeal;

Include a copy of the grantee's or subgrantee's determination of the protest, and
State the basis for the appeal.

The party filing the bid protest appeal must concurrently hansmit a copy of all protest documents and any attachments to all
other financially interested parties which may be adversely affected by the determination of the protest appeal.

EPA will only consider written protest appeals received by the Office of Regional Counsel (ORC) within seven (7)
calendar days after the adversely affected party can meet the seven day notice requirements by telegraphing or a*ing to
ORC within the seven calendar day period of its intent to file a protest appeal, provided the adversely affectid parry
submits a complete protest appeal within seven (7) calendar days of the date it serit the telegram or fur. If the seventh day
falls on a Saturday, Sunday- or holiday, the next working day shall be the last day to submit a protest appeal,

For any protest appeal based upon alleged improprieties in the solicitation which were clearly apparent before receipt of
initial proposals, EPA may dismiss as untimely any such appeals if the grantee or subgrantee does not receive the initial
protest before bid opening or the closing date for receipt ofproposals.

3

EXHIBIT PAGE



COST ANALySIS. The grantee and subgrantee must perform a cost analyris for all procurement actions to determine the

reasonableness of the proposed contract price. The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding

the particular procurement situation, but as a starting point, grantees must make independent estimates before receiving

bids or proposals'

A cost analysis will be necessary when adequate price competition is lacking; for sole source procurement; for contract

modifications, and for change orders.

COMPLIAI\CE WITH OTHER FEDERAL REGULATIONS. The grantee and subgrantee are to €nsure that their

contracts include appropriate provisions in their bid documents to ensure contractors' compliance with the following:

Administrative, confiactual or legal remedies in instances where conhctors
violate or breach contract terms, and provide sanctions and penalties.

Termination for cause or convenience by the grantee and subgrantee

including the marmer by which it will be effected and the basis for
settlement.

. Compliance with Executive Orders and Department of Labor pertaining

to Equal Employment Opportunify. @ertains to all construction conkacts

in excess of $10,000.)
. Compliance with the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act.

Compliance with secfions 103 and 107 of the Confract Work Hours and

Safety Standards Act. @ertains to construction contracts in excess of $2,000

and in excess of $2,500 for contracts involving employment of mechanics

or laborers.)
. Compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements under 306

of the Clean Air Act, section 508 of the Clean Water Act, Executive Order

11738 and EPA regulations 40 CF& Part 15. (Pertains to confracts and

subcontracts in excess of $100,000.)
. Requirements of the energy efficiency contained in the state snergy conservation

plan issued under the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. P.L. 94-163.

EpA REGSLATORY REFERENCES. 40 CFR Part 31. In circumstances where the provisions of Part 3l are

ambiguous EPA will generally look for guidance to the language of 40 CFR Part 33 and past requiremsnts and

determinations made pursuant to Part 33.

EPA.Spec.Insert5-O0

EXHIBIT PAGE



.t

Region 10 Small, Minority, and Women Business Enterprise Program Q & A

What is the Minority and Women Business Program?

It is EPA policy that recipients of EPA financial assistance through grants,

cooperative agreements and loans, award a fair share of contracts and procurement

to small, minority and women's businesses. This policy applies to all
contracts/procurement for supplies, construction, equipment and services under
any EPA grant or cooperative agreement. It also applies to any Interagency

Agreement where supplies, construction, equipment and services are being
purchased. The progam is based on the following principles:

l. A healthy, growing economy is fundamental to creating the
opportunity for formation and growth of minority - owned
businesses.

2. Greater economic independence for minorityAmericans will
best be achieved through increased opportunities for private
employment and business ownership.

3. Creativity, private entrepreneurship, and individual initiative
will ultimately determine the success or failure of individual
minority businesses.

4, Expanded involvement of the private sector is crucial to
minority enterprise developmental efforts.

What do recipients of EPA linancial assistance need to do to meet the MBE/YIBE and
Small Business requirements?

They must meet the requirements for the Program stated in 40 CRF 31.36(e), if they
are a State, Lacal or Indian Tribal recipient or 40 CFR 30.440) if they are aNon-
Profit orUniversity:

l.Include qualified MBE/WBE and Small Businesses on solicitation lists.
2. Actively solicit MBEAMBE and Small Businesses

3. Divide procurements into small tasks.

4. Provide delivery schedules which allow MBEAMBE and Small Business
participation.

5. Utilize the Small Business Adminishation and the MinorityBusiness
Development Agency.

6. Require Prime Contractor to follow these affirmative steps.

The grantee must negotiate a fair share goal foTMBEAilBE participation with EPA.

The grantee must report on actual utilization achieved.

EXHIBIT PAGE 8



What is a fair share objective and how is it determined?

A fair share goal is an estimate of how much participation the grantee will strive to

achieve, taking into consideration total project funding and the availability of qualified

and willing MBEs and WBEs who are located in the relevant market area in which the

procurements will take place. A fair share goal does not establish a quota for utilization
of MBEs and WBEs, rather it represents a commitment on the part of the recipient or a

prime contractor hired by the recipient to make a good faith effort to utilize MBEs and

WBEs to the fullest possible extent to achieve the fair share goal.

How does the Agency know if a grantee or contractor has met their fair share goal?

Grantees are required to report to EPA the amount of utilization they or their prime
contraotors were able to achieve by submitting quarterly summaries (via EPA Form
5700-52A). These reports state the total procurement done for the quarter and how much

of those procurement went to MBEs and WBEs. The information is recorded in a
National-database and the Office of Small and Disadvantaged Business Utilization
(OSDBLI) is required to provide this information to Congress.

Who is the Small, Minority and'Women Business Enterprise Program coordinator in
Region l0 and how does one lind out more information about the program?

Contact the program coordinator, Mike Letourneau in the Office for Civil Rights

and Environmeatal Justice at (206) 553-1687. In addition, you can visit the

OSDBU website at:

ht@ //www. epa. gov/sad qfzsul

EXHIBIT PAGE



[Code of Federal Regulafions] [Title 40, Volume l, Parts I to 49] [Revised as of July 1, 1999] From the U.S.
Government Printing Office via GPO Access [CITE: 40CFR31]

[Page 321-325]

TITLE 4O_PROTECTION OF EI{VIRONMENT

CIIAPTER I--ENVIROMV{ENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

PART 3I-{IMFORM ADMTMSTRATTyE REQIJTREMENTS F',OR GRANTS AND COOPERAITyE
AGREEMENTS TO STATE AI\D LOCAL GOVERITMENTS-Tab|e of Contents

Subpart A--General

Sec. 31.1 Purpose and scope of this part.
This part establishes uniform ad.ministrative rules for Federal grants and cooperative agreements and subawards to
State, local and Indian tribal govemments

Sec. 3 1.2 Scope ofsubpart.

This subpart contains general rules pertaining to this part and procedures for conbol ofexceptions from this part.

Sec. 31.3 Definitions.

As used in this part: Accrued expendihues meau the charges incurred by the grantee during a given period requiring
the provision of funds for: (1) Goods and other tangible properfyreceived; (2) Services perfomred by eryloyles, -
contractorsr subgrantees, subcontactors, and other payees; and (3) Other amounts becoming owed under proganxt
for which no culTent sen"ices or perforrulnce is required, such as annuities, insurance sfuims, and other Uenent
payments. Accrued ircorne nreans the sum of (1) Earnings during a given period from services performed by the
grantee and goods and other tangible propedy delivered to purchasers, and (2) Amounts becoming owed to tiie
grantee for which no curent services or perfonnance is required by the grantee. Acquisition cost of an item of
purchased equipment means the net invoice unit price of the property including the cost of modifications,
attachments, accessories, or auxiliary apparatus necessary to make the property usable for the purpose for which it
was acquired. Other charges such as the cost ofinstallatio4 transportation, taxes, duty or protective in-bansit
insurance, shall be included or excluded from the 'nit acquisition cost in accordance with the grantee's regulai
accounting practices. Adminisfiative requirernents mean those rnatters cornmon to grants in

f[Page322)]
general, such as financial rnanagemen! kinds and frequency ofreports, and retention ofrecords. These are
distinguished from programrtatic requirements, which concern matters that can be beated only on a
program-by-program or grant-by-grant basis, such as kinds ofactivities that can be supported by grants under a
particular prograrl Awarding agency means (l) with respect to a grant, the Federal agency, and (2) with reqpect to a
subgran! the parry that awarded the subgrant. Cash coutributions means the grantee's cash outlay, including the
,outlay of moneyconbibuted to the grantee or subgrantee by other public agencies and institutions, and private
organizations and individuals. When authorized by Federal legislation, Federal funds received from other assistance
agreements may be considered as grantee or subgrantee cash contributions. Contract rneans (except as used in the
definitions for grant and subgrant in this section and except where qualified by Federal) a procurement con&act
under a grant or subgrant, and m€ans a procuement subconbact under a contact. Cost sharing or rnatching means
the value ofthe third party in-kind contributions and the portion ofthe costs ofa federally assisted project or
program not bome by the Federal Government. Costtlpe contract means a conEact or subcontact under a grant in
which the contractor or subcontractor is paid on the basis of the costs it incurs, with or without a fee. Equipmeirt
means tangible, nonexpendable, personal property having a useful life ofmore than one year and an acquisition cost
of $5,000 or more per unit. A grantee may use its own definition of equipment provided that such definition would at
least include all equipment defined above. Expendihue report means: (l) For noncolstruction grants, the SF-269
"Financial Status Report" (or other equivalent report); (2) for construction grmb, the SF-271 "Outlay Report and
Request for Reirnbursementr' (or other equivalent report). Federally recognized Indian hibal govemment means the
governing body or a govenmental agency of any lndian tribe, band, nation, or other organized group or corgnunity
(including any Native village_as_defined in section 3 of the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, 8 

j Stat 6g3)
certified by the Secretary ofthe Interior as eligible for the special programs and services provided by lrrm through
the Bureau of Indian Affairs' Government means a State or local governrnent or a federally recognized Indian trifial

EXHIBIT PAGE / A



2

government. Grant means an award of hnancial assistance, including cooperative agreements, in the fonn of money,
or property in lieu of money, by the Federal Government to an eligible grantee. The term does not include technical
assistance which provides services instead ofmoney, or other assistance in the form ofrevenue sharing, loans, loan
guarantees, interest subsidies, in.qg13ass, or direct appropriatiors. Also, the term does not include assistance, such as

a fellowship or other lunp sum award, which the grantee is not required to account for. Grantee means the
govemmont to which a grant is awarded and which is accountable for the use of the funds provided. The grantee is
the entire legal entity even if only a particular conponent of tle entity is designated in the grant award document.
Local government.mcans a county, municipality, city, tow4 township, local public authority (including anypublic
and Indian housing agency under the United States Housing Act of 1937) school district, qpecial district intrastate
distric! council ofgovernments (whether or not incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under State law), any other
regional or interstate government entity, or any agency or instrumentality of a local government. Obligations rneans
the amounts of orders placed conEacts and subgrants awarded, goods and services received, and similar tansactions
during a given period that will require payment by the grantee during the same or a future period. OMB means the
U.S. Oflice of Management and Budget. Outlays (expenditures) mean charges made to the project orprograrn They
may be rcpoded on a cash or accrual

[[Page 323]l

basis. For reports prepared on a cash basis, outlays are the sum ofactual cash disbursement for direct charges for
goods and services, the amount ofindirect expense incurred, the value ofin-kind contributions applied" uoa ru
arnount ofcash advances and payments made to contactors and subgrantees. For reports prepared on an accnred
expenditure basis, outlays are the sum of actual cash disbursements, the amount of indirect expense incurred, the
yshre ef inkind contributions applied, and the new increase (or decrease) in the amounts owed by the grantee for
goods and other property received, for serr"ices perforrned by errployees, contractors, subgrantees, subcontactors,
and other payees, and other amounts becoming owed under progmrns for which no current services or performance
are required, such as annuities, insurance claims, and other benefit palments. Percentage of coryletion method
refers to a system under which payrnents are rnade for construction work according to the percentage of coryletion
of the worlc, rather than to the grantee's cost incurred. Prior approval means docu.mentation eyidencing consent prior
to incurring specific cost. Real property meaqs land including land inprovements, sEuchrres and appurtenances
thereto, excluding movable rnachinery and equiprnent. Share, when referring 1o 16s lysding agency's portion of real
properly, equipment or supplies, mean* the same percentage as the awarding agency's portion of the acquiring part/s
total costs under the grant to which the acquisition costs under the grant to which the acquisition cost of the property
was charged. Only costs are to be counted-not the value of third-party in-kind contributions. State means any oithe
several States of the United States, the Distict of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, any territory or
possession of the United States, or any agoncy or instumentality of a State exclusive of local governnents. The term
does not include any public and Indian housing agency under United Siates Housing Act of 1937. Subgrant means an
award of financial assistance in the form of money, or properly in lieu of money, rnade under a grant by a grantee to
an eligible subgrantee. The temt includes financial assistance when provided by conhactual legal agreemen! but
does not include procurement purchases, nor does it include any form ofassistance which is excluded from the
definition of grant in this part. Subgrantee means the government or other legal entity to which a subgrant is awarded
and which is accountable to the grantee for the use of the funds provided. Supplies means sll 6lgible personal
property other than equipment as defined in this part. Suspension means depending on the contex! either (l)
terporary withdrawal of the authority to obligate grant firnds pending corrective action by the grantee or suLgrantee
or a decision to terminate the grant or (2) an action taken by a suspending ofticial in accordance with agency
regulations irylementing E.O. 12549 to immediately exclude a person fromparticipating in grant tansactions for a
perio4 pending corpletion of an investigation and such legal or debarment proceedings as may ensue. Terrnination
meaDs pennan€nt withdrawal of the authority to obligate previously-awarded grant funds before that authority would
otherwise expire. It also means the voluntary relinquishment of that authority by the grantee or subgrantee.
Terrnination does not include: (l) Withdrawal of firnds awarded on the basis of the grantee's underistimate of tbe
unobligated balance in a prior period; (2) Wittrdrawal of the unobligated balance as of the expiration of a grant; (3)
Refirsal to extend a grant or award additional funds, to nrake a corrpeting or noncorryeting continuatio4 renewal,
extension, or supplemental award; or (4) Voiding of a grant upon determination that the award was obtained
fraudulently, or was otherwise illegal or invalid from inception. Terms of a grant or subgrant mean all requirements
of the grant or subgrant whether in statute, regulations, or the award document.

EXHIBIT PAGE



3

[[Page 324]l

Third party in-kind contributions mean property or services which benefit a federally assisted project or program and

which are contnlbuted by non-Federal third parties without charge to the gtantee, or a cost-t1pe contrastor under the

grant agreement. Unliquidated obligations for reports prepared on a cash basis mean the amount of obligations

incurred by the grantee that has not been paid. For reports prepared on an accrued expenditure basis, they represent

the amount of obligatiorx incurred by the grantee for which an outlay has not been recorded. Unobligated balance

means the portion of the funds authorized by the Federal agency that has not been obligated by the grantee and is

determined by deducting the cumulative obligations from the cumulative funds authorized.

Sec. 3 1,4 ApplicabilitY.

(a) General. Subparts A-D of this part apply to all grants and subgrants to governments, except where inconsistent

with Federal statutes or with regulations authorized in accordance with the exception provision of Sec. 31.6, or: (1)
Grants and subgrants to State and local institutions of higher education or State and local hospitals. (2) The block
grants authorized by the Onmibus Budget Reconciliation Act of l98l (Community Services; Preventiye Health and

Health Services; Alcohol Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Services; Matemal and Child Health Services; Social

Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance; States' Program of Cornrrunity Development Block Grants for
Small Cities; and Elementary and Secondary Education other than programs administered by the Secretary of
Education under Title V, Subtitle D, Chapter 2, Section 583-the Secretaqy's discretionary grant program) and Titles
I- III of the Jeg fasining Fartnership Act of 1982 and under the Public Health Services Act (Section l92l), Alcohol
and Drug Abuse Treafinent and Rehabilitation Block Grant and Part C of Title V, Mental Health Service for the

Homeless Block Grant). (3) Entitlement grants to carry out the following prograrns of the Social Security Act (D Aid
to Needy Families with Dependent Children (Title IV-A of the Acf not including the Work Incentive Program

(WIN) authorized by section a02(a)19(G); IIHS grants for WIN are subject to this part); (ii) Child Support

Enforcement and Establishment of Patemity (Title IV-D of the Act); (iii) Foster Care and Adoption Assistance (Title
IV-E of the Act); (iv) Aid to the Aged, Blind, andDisabled (Titles I, X, XlV, andXVI-AABD of the Act); and (v)
Medical Assisiance (Medicaid) (Title )ilX of the Act) not including the State Medicaid Fraud ConFol program

authorized by section 1903(a)(Q@). (4) Entitlement gnnts under the following programs of The National School

Lunch Act (i) School Lunch (section 4 of the Act), (ii) Commodity Assistance (section 6 of the Act), (iii) Special

Meal Assistance (section 11 of the Act), (iv) Summer Food Service for Children (section 13 of the Act), and (v)
Child Care Food Program (section l7 of the Act). (5) Entitlement grants under the following prognms of The Ctild
Nutition Act of 1966: (i) Special Milk (section 3 of the Act), and (ii) School Breakfast (section 4 of the Act). (6)
Entitlement grants for State Administative expenses under The Food Stanp Act of 1977 (section 16 of the AcQ. (7)
A grant for an experimental, pilo{ or demonsbation project that is also supported by a grant listed in paragraph

(a)(3) of this section; (8) Grant firnds awarded under subsection al2@) of the Immigntion and Nationality Act (8
U.S.C. 1522(e)) and subsection 501(a) of the Refugee Education Assistance Act of 1980 (Pub. L.

[fPage 32s]l

96422,94 Stat. 1809), for cash assistance, medical assistance, and supplemental security income benefits to

refugees and enhants and the adminisbative costs ofproviding the assistance and benefits; (9) Grants to local
education agencies under 20 U.S.C. 236 through24l-1(a), and242 through 244 (portions of the Inpact Aid
program), except for 20 U.S.C. 238(d)(2)(c) and 240(D (Entitlement Increase for Handicapped Children); and (10)
Payments under the Veterans Administation's State Home Per Diem Program (38 U.S.C. 6a l(a). (b) Entitlement
prograru. Entitlement prognllrs enumerated above in Sec. 31.4(a) (3) tbrough (8) are subject to subpart E.

Sec. 31.5 Effect on other issuances.

All other grauts administation provisions of codified program regulations, program nunuals, handbools and other
nonregulatory materials which are inconsistent with this part are superseded, exc-ept to the extent they are required by
statute, or authorized in accordance with the exception provision in Sec. 3 1.6.

Sec. 31.6 Additions and exceptions.

(a) For classes of grants and grantees subject to this part, Federal agencies may not irnpose additional administative
requirements except in codified regulations published in the Federal Register. (b) Exceptions for classes of grants or
grantees may be authorized only by OMB. (c) Exceptions on a case-by-case basis and for subgrantees may be

EXHIBIT 4 ,ocE /L



4

authorized by the affected Federal agencies. (l) In the Environmental Protection Agency, the Director, Grants
Administation Divisioq is authorized to grant the exceptions. (2) [Reserved] (d) The EPA Director is also
authorized to approve exceptions, on a class or an individual case basis, to EPA progmm-specific assistance
regulations other than those which inplement statutory and executive order requirements.

[53 FR 8068 and 8087, Mar. I 1, I 988, and amended at 53 FR 8075, Mar. I 1, 1988]

programmatic requirements for a plan that are in statutes or codified regulations. (c) Assurances. In each plan the
State will include an assurance that the State shall conply with all applicable Federal statutes and regulations in
effect with respect to the periods for which it receives grant funding. For this assurance and other assurances
required in the plan, the State may: (1) Cite by number the statutory or regulatory provisions requiring the assurances
and affrm that it gives the assurances required by those provisions, (2) Repeat the assurance lauguage in the statutes
or regulations, or (3) Develop its own language to the extent permitted by law. (d) Amendments. A State will amend
a plan whenever necessary to reflecfi (l) New or revised Federal statutes or regulations or (2) a nraterial change in
any State law, organization, policy, or State agency operation. The State will obiain approval for the amendment and
its eflective date but need submit for approval only the amended portions of the plan.

Sec. 3 1 . 1 2 Special grant or subgrant conditions for "high-risk" grantees.

(a) A grantee or subgrantee rnay be considered "high risk" if an awarding agency deterrnines that a gantee or
subgrantee: (l) Has a history of unsatisfactory performance, or (2) Is not financially stable, or (3) Has a nunagerne,nt
system which does not meet the management standards set forth in this part, or (4) Has not conformed to terms and
conditions ofprevious awards, or (5) Is otherwise not responsible; and ifthe awarding agency deterrnines that an
award willbe made, special conditions and/or restrictions shall correspond to the high risk condition and shall be
included in the award. (b) Special conditions or restrictions may include: (1) Payrrent on a reimbursement basis; (2)
Withholding authority to proceed to the next phase until receipt of evidence of acceptable performance wirhin a
given funding period; (3) Requiring additional, more detailed financial reports; (4) Additional projectmonitoring;
(5) Requiring the grantee or subgrantee to obtain technical or rnanagement assistance; or (Q Establishing additional
prior approvals. (c) If an awarding ageacy decides to inpose such conditions, the awarding official will notif the
grantee or subgrantee as early as possible, in writing of: (l) The nature ofthe special conditions/restictions; (2) The
reason(s) for irryosing theq (3) The corective actions which must be taken before they will be removed and the
tinre allowed for coryleting the corrective actions and (a) The rnethod of request'ng reconsideration of the
conditions/ restrictions iryosed.

Sec.3l.13 Principal environmental statutoryprovisions applicable to EPA assistance awards.

Grantees shall corryly with all applicable Federal laws including: (a) Section 306 of the Clean Air Act, (42 U.S.C.
7606). (b) Section 508 of the Federal Water Pollution Contol Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1368). (c) Section
M2a@) of the Safe Drinking Water Act, (42 U.S.C. 300h- 3(e)).

[53 FR 8075, Mar. I l, 1988]

ffPase327]l

[Code of Federal Regulations] [Title 40, Volume l, Parts I to 49] fRevised as of July l, 1999] From the U.S.
Govemment Printing Oflice via GPO Access [CITE: 40CFR3I ]

lPage327-348)

TITLE 4O-PROTECTION OF EI'ryIRONMENT

CHAPTER I-E}.I\ITRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

PART 3 I-UNIFORM ADMIMSTRATTVE REQt'IREMENTS FOR GRANTS AND COOPERATTVE
AGREEMENTS TO STATEAND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS-TabIe of Contents

Subpart C-Post-Award Requirements

Financial Administratio

Sec. 31.20 Standards for financial management systerns.

fXHIBIT PAGE /3



5

(a) A State must expand and account for grant nmds in accordance with State laws and procedures for expending and

ur*""ti"g for its own funds. Fiscal control and accounting procedures of the State, as well as its subgrantees and

cost-tJpe ionhactors, must be sufficient to- (l) Permit preparation of reports required by this pad and the statutes

autnorizing the grant, and (2) permit the nacing of funds to a level of expenditures adequate to establish that such

funds have not been used in violation of the restrictions and prohibitions of applicable statutes. (b) The financial

rnanagement systerns of other grantees and subgrantees must meet the following standards: (l) Financial reporting.

a""*?*, current, and conpleG discloswe of the financial results of financially-assisted activities must be rnade in

u."ord*r" with the fnanciat reporting requirements ofthe grant or subgrant. (2) Accounting records. Grantees and

,"Ugr*t"", must rnaintain records which adequately identiff the source and application of funds provided for

n"ui"i"ffy-ussisted activities. These records must contain information pertaining to gxant or subgrant awards and

"rtn 
rirulio*, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures, and income. (3) Internal

con6ol. Effective control and accountability must be maintained for all grant and subgrant cash, real and personal

properly, and other assets, Grautees and subgrantees must adequately safeguard all such property and must assure

iUufit i, *"a solcly for authorized purposes. (4) Budget contol. Actual expenditures or outlays must bc conpared

with budgeted amounts for each grant or subgrant. Financial information must be related to performance or

proaortiity data, including the development of unit cost information whenever appropriate or specifically required
-i" 

O" g*ior subgrant agreemeni If unit cost data are required, estimates based on available docurnentation will be

acceptid whenever possiUte. (S) Allowable cost. Applicable OMB cost principles, agency program regulations, and

tU, i"r., of grant and subgrant agreements will be followed in determining the reasonableness, allowability, and

allocability o?"ortr. (6) Source documentation. Accounting records must be supported by such source

jo"o*"otution as cancelled checks, paid bills, payrolls, time and attendance records, contract and subgrant award

do"o-"os, etc. (7) Cash rnanagernent. Procedures for minimizing the time elapsing between the transfer of funds

from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement by grantees and subgrantees must be followed whenever advance payrnent

p*a** are used. Grantees must establish reasonable procedures to ensure the receipt of reports on subgrantees'

i*n tum""s and cash disbursements in suffrcient time to enable them to pr€pare corplete and accurate cash

Ju*".tio* reports to the awarding agency. When advances are made by letter-of-credit or electonic transfer of

firnds methods, the grantee must make drawdowrs as close as possible to the time of making disbursemenb.

Gr*,"". must monitor cash drawdowns by their subgrantees to assure that they confomr substantially to the same

standards of timing and amount as apply to advances to the grantees. (c) An awarding agency may review the

uJ"q*"y of the financial management system of any applicant for financial assistance as part of a preaward rcview

or at any time subsequent to award'

Sec.31.21 PaYment'

(a) Scope. This section prescribes the basic standard and the methods under which a Federal agency will rnake

iu1-r"ot to grantees, and grantees will rnake palm,ents to subgrantees and contractors. (b) Basic standard' Methods

ioa pro""a*is for payment shall minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds and disbursement by the

gr-itt or subgrantee, in accordance

[[Page 328]l

with Treasury regulations at 31 CFR part 205. (c) Advances. Grantees and zubgnntges shall be paid in advance,

pio"iara Oey maintain or demonstrate the willingness and ability to nraintainprocedwes to minimize the time

lf-"pfuUrt*"en the transfer of the firnds and their disbursement by the grantee or subgrantee. (d) Reimbunenrent.

R"iroU,is"m"nt shall be the prefened method when the requirements in paragraph (c) of this section are not rret.

Grantees and subgrante"r olay also be paid by reimbursernent for any constnrction grant, Except as otherwise

specified in regulation" Federal agencies shall not use the percentage of conpletion method to pay constmction

gr-t . The grantee or subgrantee may r$e that method to pay its construction contractor, aud if it does, the awarding

&*"y, p"i-""o to the grantee or subgrantee will be based on the grantee's or subgrantee's actual rate of

airi*irrir"ir. (e) working capital advances. If a grantee c.nnot meet the criteria for advance payments described in

p-"g*pn (c) of-this section, and the Federal agency has determined that reinrbursement is not feasible because the

;;;;ri."il sufficient working capital, the awarding agency may provide cash or a working capital advance basis.

flnder this procedure the awarding agency shall advance cash to the grantee to cover its estirnated disbursement

"""a, 
fo, * ir,iti.t period generally geared to the grantee's disbursing cycle. Thereafter, the awarding agency shall

,"i-U*r" the grantee for its actual cash disbursements. The working capital advance method ofpayment shall not be

EXHIBIT ft- PAGE /{



6

used by grantees or subgmntees if the reason for using such method is the unwillingness or inability of the grantee to
provide timely advances to the subgrantee to meet the subgrantee's actual cash disbursements. (f) Effect ofprogram
income, refunds, and audit recoveries on payment. (1) Grantees and subgrantees shall disburse repayments to and

interest earned on a revolving fimd before requesting additional cash payments for the same activity. (2) Except as

provided in paragraph (I)(1) ofthis section, grantees and subgrantees shall disbwse program income, rebates,

refimds, contract settlements, audit recoveries and interest earned on such funds before requesting additional cash
payments. (g) Withholding payments. (l) Unless otherwise required by Federal statute, 4warding agencies shall not
withhold payments for proper charges incurred by grantees or subgrantees u'rless-- (i) The grantee or subgrantee has

failed to conply with grant award conditions or (ii) The grantee or subgrantee is indebted to the United States. (2)
Cash withheld for failure to conply with grant award condition, but without suspension of the gran! shall be released

to the grantee upon subsequent corrpliance. When a grant is suspended, payment adjustnents will be made in
accordance with Sec. 31.a3(c). (3) A Federal agency shall not make pa)ment to grantees for amounts that are
withheld by grantees or subgrantees from payment to conhactors to assure satisfactory corrpletion of work.
Payments shall be made by the Federal agency when the grantees or subgrantees actually disburse the witlrheld funds
to the contractors or to escrow accounts established to assure satisfactory cornpletion of work. ft) Cash depositories,
(l) Consistent with the national goal of expanding the opportunities for minority business enterprises, grantees and
subgrantees ar€ €ncouraged to use minority banta (a bank which is owned at least 50 percent by minority group
members). A list of minority owned banls can be obtained from the Minority Business Development Agency, 

-

Deparfinent of Commerce, Washington, DC 20230. (2) A grantee or subgrantee shall maintain a separaie bank
account only when required by Federal-State agreement. (i) Interest eamed on advances. Except for interest earned
on advances of firnds exerryt under the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (31 U.S.C. 6501 et seq.) and.the Indian
Self-Deterrnination Act (23 U.S.C. 450), grantees and subgrantees shall prorytly, but at least quarterly, remit
interest earned on advances to the Federal agency. The

[fPase329])
grantee or subgrantee may keep interest amounts up to $100 per year for administative expenses.

Sec. 3 1.22 Allowable costs.

(a) Limitation on use of funds. Grant firnds rnay be used only for: (1) The allowable costs of the grantees,

subgrantees and cost-tlpe contactors, including allowable costs in the form ofpayrnents to fixed- price contractors;
and (2) Reasonable fees or profit to cost-type conhactors but not any fee or profit (or other increment above
allowable costs) to the grantee or subgrantee. (b) Applicable cost principles. For each kind oforganization, there is a
set of Federal principles for determining allowable costs. Allowable costs will be determined in accordance with the
cost principles applicable to the organi"ation incurring the costs. The following chart lists the kinds of organizations
and the applicable cost principles.

For the costs of a-Use the principles in-
State, local or Indian tribal government.. OMB Circular

A-87. Private nonprofit organization other than OBM Circular A-122. an (l) institution of higher educatio4 (2)
hospital, or (3) organization named in OMB Circular A-122 as not subject to that circular. Educational
institutions.... OMB Circular A-21. For-profit organization other than a48 CFR part 3 l, Contact hospital
and an organization named in OBM Cost Principies and Circul ar A-722 as not subject tothat Procedures, or uniform
cost circular. accounting standards that conply with cost principles acceptable to the Federal agency,

Sec. 31.23 Period of availability of firnds.

(a) General. Where a funding period is specified, a grantee may charge to the award only costs resulting from
obligations of ttre firndbg period unless carryover of unobligated balances is permitted in which case the carryover
balances may be charged for costs resulting from obligations of the subsequent frrnding period. (b) Liquidation of
obligations. A grantee must liquidate all obligations incured under the award not later than 90 days after the end of
the funding period (or as specified in a program regulation) to coincide with the submission of the annual Financial
Status Report (SF- 269). The Federal ag€ncy may extend this deadline at the request ofthe grantee

Sec. 31.24 Mlf6hing or cost sharing.

EXHIBIT PAGE



7

(a) Basic rule: Costs aud contributiorx acceptable. With the qualifications and exceptions listed in paragraph (b) of
this section, a matching or cost sharing requirement may be satisfied by either or both of the following: (l)
Allowable costs incured by the grantee, subgrantee or a cost- bpe contractor under the assistance agreement. This

includes allowable costs bome by non-Federal granb or by other cash donations from non- Federal third parties. (2)

The value of third party in'kind contributions applicable to the period to which the cost sharing or rnatching

requirements applies. (b) Qualifications and excepfions-(1) Costs borne by other Federal grant agreements. Except

as provided by Federal statute, a cost sliaiing or matching requirement may not be rnet by costs bome by another

Federal gnnt. This prohibition does not apply to income earned by a grantee or subgrantee from a contact awarded

under another Federal grant. (2) General reyenue sharing. For the purpose ofthis section, general revenue sharing

funds distributed under 3l U.S.C. 6702 are not considered Federal grant funds. (3) Cost or contributions counted

towards other Federal costs- sharing requirements. Neither costs nor the values of ttrird party in- kind conFibutions
may count towards satis$ing a cost sharing or matching requirement of a grant agreernent if they have been or will
be counted towards satisffing a cost sharing or rnatching requirement of another Federal grant agreement, a Federal

procurement contract, or any othrcr award of Federal funds. (4) Costs financed by program income. Cosb financed by
program income, as defined in Sec. 3l .25, shall not count towards satisffing a cost sharing or matching requirement

unless they are expressly pennitted in the terms of the assisiance agreement. (This use of general program income is
described in Sec. 3l-25(g).)

[lPage 330]l

(5) Services or property financed by income earned by contactors. Conhactors under a grant may earn income from
the activities carried out under the contact in addition to the amounts earned from the party awarding the contract.
No costs of services or property supported by this income rnay count toward satisfring a cost sharing e1 msfshing
requirement unless other provisions of the grant agrcement expressly permit this kind of income to be used to meet

the requirement. (6) Records. Costs and third party in-kind contributions counting towards satisfring a cost sharing
or nratchi"g requirement must be verifiable from the records of grantees and subgrantee or cost-t1pe contractors.

These records must show how the value placed on third party in-kind contributions was derived. To the extent

feasible, volunteer services will be supported by the sarne methods that the organization uses to support the

allocabitty ofregular personnel costs. (7) Special standards for third party in-kind conEibutions. (i) Third party

in-kind contributions count towards satisfying a cost sharing or matching requirenrcnt only where, if the party
receiving the contributions were to pay for thenr, the pa;ments would be allowable costs. (ii) Some third party
in-kind contributions are goods and services that ifthe grantee, subgrantee, or conbactor receiving the contribution
had to pay for thern, the palm,ents would have been an indirect costs. Costs sbaring or matching credit for such

contributions shall be given only ifthe grantee, subgrantee, or contuactor has established, along with its regular
indirect cost rate, a special rate for allocating to individual projects or progranxi the value ofthe contributions. (iii) A
third parfy in-kind contribution to a fixed-price conhact rnay count towards satisfying a cost sharing or rnatching

requirement only if it results in: (A) An increase in the services or property provided under the contract (without
additional cost to the grantee or subgrantee) or (B) A cost savings to the grantee or subgrantee. (iv) The values
placed on third party in-kind confi:'butions for cost sharing or rnatching purposes will conform to the rules in the

succeeding sections of this part. If a third party in-kind contribution is a tJpe not teated in those sections, the value
placed upon it shall be fair and reasonable. (c) Valuation of donated services-(l) Volunteer scrvices. Unpaid
services provided to a grantee or subgrantee by individuals will be valued at rates consistent with those ordinarily
paid for iimilar work in the grantee's or subgrantee's organization. If the grantee or subgrantee does not have

inployees performing similar work, the rates will be consistent with those ordinarilypaid by other enployers for
similar work in the same labor market. In either case, a reasonable amount for fringe benefits may be included in the

valuation. (2) Enployees of other organizations. When an enployer other than a grantee, subgrantee, or cost-tlpe
con6actor firmishes free of charge the services of an enployee in the employee's normal line of work, the services
will be valued at the enployee's regular rate of pay exclusive of the enployee's fringe benefits and overhead costs. If
the services are in a different line of worlg paragraph (cXl) of this section applies. (d) Valuation of thirdparfy
donated supplies and loaned equipment or space. (l) If a third party donates supplies, the contn-bution will be valued
at the rnarket value of the supplies at the time of donation. (2) If a third party donates the use of equipment or space

in a building but retains title, the contribution will be valued at the fair rental rate of the equipment or space. (e)

Valuation of third party donated equipmen! buildings, and land. If a third party donates equipmen! buildings, or
land, and title passes to a grantee or subgrantee, the beatnent ofthe donated properly will depend upon the purpose

IXHIBIT PAGE



8

ofthe grant or subgrant, as follows: (l) Awards for capital expendihues. Ifthe purpose ofthe grant or subgrant is to

assist the grantee or subgnntee in the acquisition of property, the market value of that properly at the time of

[[Page 331]l

donation may be counted as cost sharing or matching, (2) Other awards. If assisting in the acquisition of property is

not the purpose of the grant or subgnnt, paragraphs (eXZ) (i) and (ii) of this section apply: (i) If approval is obtained

from thi awarding agency, the.market value at the time of donation of the donated equipment or buildings and the

fair rental rate of the donated land may be counted as cost sharing or matching. In the case ofa subgranf the terms of
the grant agreenpnt may require that the approval be obtained from the Federal agency as well as the grantee. In all

"6it, 
th" approval may be given only if a pruchase of the equipment or rental of the land would be approved as an

allowable direct cost. If any part of the donated properfy was acquired with Federal funds, only the non-federal share

of the property may be counted as cost-sharing or matching. (ii) If approval is not obtained under paragraph (eX2)(i)

of thisiection, no amount may be counted for donated land, and only depreciation or use allowances rnay be counted

for donated equipment and buildings. The depreciation or use allowances for this proPerly are not treated as third

parfy in-kind contributions. Instead, they are heated as costs incurred by the grantee or subgrantee. They are

computed and allocated (usually as indirect costs) in accordanie with the cost principles specified in Sec. 31.22, in

the same way as depreciation or use allowances forpurchased equipment *6 6ulldings. The amount of depreciation

or use allowances for donated equipment and buildings is based on the properry's rnarket value at the time it was

donated. (f) Valuation ofgrantee or subgrantee donated real properly for construction/acquisition. Ifa grantee or

subgrantee donates real property for a construction or facilities acquisition project the current market value ofthat
proi"rty n ay be counted as cost sharing or matching. If any part of the donated property was acquired with Federal

h-ir, ooty the non-federal share of the properfy may be counted as cost sharing or matching. (g) Appraisal of real

properfy. In some cases under paragraphs (d), (e) and (0 of this sectio4 it will be necessary to establish the market

uatu" oiUna or a building or the fair rental rate of land or of space in a building. In these cases, the Federal agency

may require the market value or fair rental value be set by an independent appraiser, and that the value or rate be

r".itiea ty the grantee. This requirement will also be irrposed by the grantee on subgrantees.

Sec. 31.25 Program income.

(a) General. Grantees are encoruaged to earn income to defray program costs. Program income includes income from

ieis for services perfonned" from the use or rental ofreal or personal Property acquired with grant firnds, from the

sale of commodities or iterns fabricated under a grant agreemenf and from payments of principal and interest on

loans rnade with grant funds. Except as otherwise provided in regulations of the Federal agency, program income

does not include interest on grant firnds, rebates, credits, discounb, refunds, etc. and interest earned on any ofthern
(b) Definition of program income. Program income means gross income received by the grantee or subgrantee

ait""tty generated by a grant supported activity, or eamed only as a result of the grant agreement during the grant

period. 
t'D*iog the grant period" is the time between the effective date of the award and the ending date of the

award reflected in the fiual financial report. (c) Cost of generating program income. If authorized by Federal

regulations or the grant agreement, costs incident to the generation of program income may be deducted from gross

income to determine program income. (d) Govemmental revenues. Taxes, special assessm€nts, levies, fines, and

other such revenues raised by a grantee or subgrantee are not program income unless the revenues are specifically

identified in the grant agreement or Federal agency regulations as program income. (e) Royalties. Income from

royalties and license fees for copyrighted rnaterial, patents, and inventions developed by a grantee or subgrantee is

prognm income only if the r€venues are specifically identified in the grant agreement

[fPage 332]l

or Federal agency regulations as program income. (See Sec. 31.34.)(I) Property. Proceeds from the sale of real

property or equipment will be handled in accordance with the requiremenk of Secs. 31.31 and 31.32. (E) Use of
p.bu- income. Program income shall be deducted Aom outlays which may be both Federal and non-Federal as

irpriU"a below, rrnlsss ths Federal agency regulations or the grant agr€em€nt specry another altemative (or a

combination of the alternatives). In speciffing alternatives, the Federal agency nay distinguish between income

earned by the gnntee and income eamed by subgrantees and between the sources, kinds, or amounts of income.

When Federal agencies authorize the alternatives in paragraphs (g) (2) and (3) of this section, program income in

excess of any limits stipulated shall also be deducted from outlap. (l) Deduction. Ordinarilyprogram income shall

EXHTBTT LPAGE /z-



9

be deducted from total allowable costs to determine the net allowable costs. Program income shall be used for

current costs unless the Federal agency authorizes otherwise. Program income which the Srantee did not anticipate at

,h" ,i*" of the award shall be *rd to reduce the Federal agency and grantee contributions rather than to increase the

funds committed to the froject. (2) Addition. When authorized, program income may be added to thc funds

committed to the grant u$""*"rt-by the Federal agency and the gmntee. The program income shall be used for the

orr-or", and under the inditions of the grant agreement. (3) cost sharing or matching. when-authorized, program

""ilJ*" ,o"v u. *"a io meet the cost sharing ot *utrhitrg requirement of the grant agreernent. The amount of the

Federal grant award remains the same. (h) Income after ihe award period. There are no Federal requirements

;;;;;f; rhe disposition of program rncome egned after the end of the award period (i.e., until the ending date of

the final financial reporl ,", pur-ugtupn (a) ofthis section), unless the tenns ofthe agreement or the Federal agency

,egulations Provide othtt*it"'

Sec. 31.26 Non-Federal audit'

(a) Basic mle. Grantees and subgrantees are responsible q 
"F1une.*dits 

in accordance with the single Audit Act

I-""a-""" of 1996 (31 u.s.c. 75ol-7507) and revised oMB circularA-133, "Audis of states, Local

co""*ro*o, and Non-profit organizations." The audits shall be rnade by an independent auditor in accordance

ffi;;;;rily accepted governmint aufrling standards covering financial audits. (b) Subgrantees. state or local

gor"im*ts, as tt ose teirns are defined for purposes of the SingleAudit Act Arrpndments of 1996, that gro1de-

F"a"rJ u*-'a, to a subgrantee, which r*p"oar broo,000 or more (or other amount as specified by oMB) in Federal

awards in a fiscal yr*, Jhull, 1i; netermine whether State or local subgrantees have met the audit requirements of

,h;;;;;;;"th;t subgrantees covered by oMB CircularA-110, "unifonnAdministsative Requiremenb for

Grants and Agreements iitu rortitotiohs of Higher Education, Hospitals, and other Non-Profit Organizations,ihave

;;i ilr" auditiequiremenr of the Act. Commercial contactors (private for'profit and privatg and govemrnental

;;;-J;;) providing goods and services to-state and local governments are not required to have a single audit

;;H[t a[i" *a loi"i gon"--"nts should.use their own procedures to ensure that tbs contactor bas corylied

;rh;;, and regulations ahecting the expenditure of Federal tunds; (2) Determine whether the subgrantee spent

r"a"r"r ,rri.tanJe nrnas provideJin ur.oid*"r with applicable laws and regulations' This rnay h accorylished by

;r;;-*G; audit of the-Jgrantee made in accordance with the Act, circular A-l10, or througb o,6"t rneans (e.g.,

;;G;;"*1if tn" subgr'antee has n9t had such an audit; (3) Ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken

;fi" six months after receipt of the audit report in instance of noncorrpliance with Federal laws and regulations;

i6 C;td* whether subgrantee audits necessitate adjustnent of the grantee's own records; and

[[Page 333]l

(5) Require each subgrantee to permit independent auditors to have access to the records and financial statemenb' (c)

Auditor selection. In ananging for audit services, sec. 31.36 shall be followed.

[53 FR 8075, 8087, Mar. 11, 1988, as amended at 62 FR 45939,45944, Aug.29, |997]

Ctanges, ProPertY, and Subawards

Sec. 31.30 Changes.

(a) General. Grantees and subgrantees are permitted to rebudget within the approved direct cost budget to rneet

il;,i"iput"a requirements rJa t*y mateiimitea progmm changes to the apprwed prpj-ect. However, unless waived

by the awarding agency, certain types ofpost-award changes in budgets and projects shall require the prior uritten

"irr*ur 
of the awarding ug"ory. (b; Relation to cost principles. The applicable cost principles (see Sec- 31.22)

ffi;;r;;;-""tr r"iptior appioval of cerrain 6pes of costs. Except where waived those requirements apply to

uit gr*u and subgranb wen ifiaragnphs G) tlttoueh (f) of this section do not' (c) Budget changes' (l)
Noilo**"tion frojects. Exceit ur rtrt"d in'other rlgulations or an award documen! grantees or subgrantees shall

ilffi;ilor approval of the awarding agency whenever any of the following changes is anticipated under a

"""***ir,ion 
award: (i) Any revision-wfrch would result in the need for additional firnding. (ii) Unless waived by

the awarding agency, curnulative transfers among direct cost categories,-or, if applicable' among separatelybudgeted

;r[rr*, piql.t ,-n 
"dons, 

or activities which exceed or are€xp€cted.to exceed ten percent of the current total

ippi""ra fi"a!et, whenever tie awarding agency's share exceeds $100,000. (iii) Transfer of funds allotted for

d;;t;i";ces (i.e., from direct payments to rainees to other expense categories)' (2) Construction projects.

EXHTBTT 4 - IAGE E*



10

Grantees and subgrantees shall obtain prior written approval for any budget revision which would result in the need

for additional funds. (3) Combined ,o*to"tioo and nonconstuction projects. When a grant or subgrant provides

funding for both construction and nonconstruction activities, the grantee or subgnntee must obtain prior written

approval from the u*raiog agency before making any flrnd or budget transfer from nonconstruction to construction

or vice versa. (d) rrogamr;ti-c changes. Grantees-or subgrantees must obtain the prior approval of the awarding

agency whenever any of the following actions is anticrnltef: (l) fnr revision of the scope or objectives of the

project (regardless of whether there is an associated uuaget rwision requiring prior approval)' (2) Need to extend the

ncriort of availability otrn oas. (3) Changes in key persons in cases where specffied in-anapplication or a grant

KH.;,;;"'#;;;, ; 
"uuogr 

inine proiecidirector or principal investigator shall always require approval

unless waived by the u**ding ageicy. (a) finaer nonconstructionprojects, contacting ou! subgranting (if

authorized by law) or otherwiie oUtaining the services of a third party to perforrn activities whig| are central to the

;;;;, ;iiil awara. tais approvar re{uirement is in addition to the approval requiremenB of Sec. 3 I '36 but does

not apply to the procurement of equipmen! supplies, and general support seryices' (e) Additional prior approval

requirements. The awarding agency may nof require prior approval ior any budget revision which is not described in

paragraph (c) of tbis *",ioi. a9 n"q*ttiog prior approval' ( f ) { reque.gt for prior approval of any budget revision

ffiif" io til" ,u-, budget forrnat tnr g-t"i used in its application and shall be-acconpanied by a nanative

iustification for the proposed revision. 1z; A request fgr a prigr approvar under the applicable Federal cost principles

fi|ffili.; ;;';; *de by tetter. (i) e request by a subgrantee for prior approval will be addressed in writing

to the gantee. ihe grantee will prorrytly review such request and

[[Page 334]l 
rrove anybudget orprojectrevisionwhichis

shall approve or disapprove the request in writing' A grantee will n9t ap1

inconsistent with the purpos" ot terrns aoa condiioos-of the Federal gr*t to the grantee' If the revisioq requested by

the subgrantee would r"rutt io a change to the grantee's approved project which requires Federal prior approval, the

il"d,"; *tff "Utain 
tne Federal ug"otyt approval before approving the subgrantee's request'

Sec. 31.3 I Real ProPertY'

;;;;. ;;tjecito tne oUtigations and. conditions set forth in this section, title to real property acquired under a

;;;ffi;ant will ;;F" acquisition inrhe grantee or subgrantee respectively. (b) use. Except as otherwise

provided by Federal ,t"tot"i rrat property will beirsed for the originally authorized purposes as long as needed for

that purposes, and the *","" or subgraniee shall not dispose of or encumber its title or other interests' (c)

il;;;;;. \i/h", reafproperry is nJ longer needed for the originalty authorized pupose' the grantee or subgrantee

wilr request disposition rnstoctions from the awarding agency. The instructions will provide for one of the following

;i;;;;;; (t) Retention of title. Retain title after compensating th9 awarding agency. The amount paid to the

;;;;g;;"ncy will be corryuted byappl4lg the awar-tling agency's p€rcentage of participation in the cost of the

;;;t "lffid; 
to the fair market uuruioiG property. goweygr, in those situations where a gantee or subgrantee

ffitrr"G of real property acquired with.qr*t nroat and acquiring replacement real property under the sarne

prograrq the net proce"Ar to-'tn" disposition rnay be used aJ an oflset to the cost of the replacement property' (2)

!"ii"f Or"p"rty.'Sell te property and c_onpensate the awarding agency. The amount due to the awarding agency

will be calculated by 
"ppli,id 

the awarding agency's percentage of participation in the cost of the original purchase

to the proceeds ofthe sale uft-er deduction ofany u"tout and reasonable selling and fixing-up expenses. Ifthe grant is

still active, the net proceeds from sale may be offset against the original cost of the property' when a grantee or

;;;il is direcied to sellproperty, sales procedures shall be followed that provide for corpetition to the extent

"""ir""ur" and result in the highest iossible return. (3) Transfer of title. Transfer title to the awarding agency or to a

i*i_;*r;;;g**oupp-uri ty the awarding. agency. The grantee or subgrantee shall be paid an amount

calculated by applying ,rti gr*,* 
"t 

subgranteJs iercentage orparticipation in the purchase of the real property to

the current fair market value of the property'

Sec.31.32 EquiPment'

(a) Title. Subject to the obligatiors and conditions set forth in this section, title to equipment acquired under a grant

or subgrant will vest upon alquisition in the grantee or subgrantee respectively. (b) states. A state will use, nanage'

and dispose of equipment acquired under a grant uy the stare in accordance with state laws and procedures. other

grantees and subgranteeswilffoilowparagraphs (c) tnrougn (e) ofthis section. (c) Use. (l) Equipment shall be used

Exr-ililT 4 PAGE 
')



11

by the grantee or subgrantee in the program or project for which it was acquired as long as neede4 whether or not

the project or program continues to be supported by Federal funds. Wlen no longer needed for the original program

or projecg the equipment may be used in other activities currently or previously supported by a Federal agency. (2)

The grantee or subgrantee shall also make equipment available for use on other projects or progmrr currently or

previously supported by the Federal Govemmen! providing such use will not interfere with the work on the projects

o, progr"* f- which it was originally acquired. First preference for other use shall be given to other programs or

pifi"rl supported by the awarding agency. User fees should be considered if appropriate. (3) Notwithstanding the

"rr**ugr-"ot 
in Sec. 31.25(a) to earn programincome, the grantee or subgrantee must not use equiprnent acquired

with grant

[lPaee 335]l

funds to provide services for a feb to corpete unfairly with private corrpanies that provide equivalent services,

unless specifically perrnitted or conterrplated by Federal statute. (4) When acquiring replacement equiPment the

grantee br subgrantee may use the equipment to be replaced as a tade-in or sell the property and use the proceeds to

iffset the cost of the replacement properly, subject to the approval of the awarding agency. (d) Management

requirements. Procedures for managing equipment (iucluding replacement equipment), whether acquired in whole or

i" putt with grant firnds, until disposition takes place will, as a minimuDo, rreet the following requirements: (l)
property recirds must be maintained that include a description of the property, a serial number or other identification

"rr-to, 
the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, and cost of the property, percentage of Federal

participation in the cost of the properly, the locatiog use and condition of the properly, and any ultimate disposition

iut" i*fuaiog the date of disposaiand sale price of the properfy. (2) A physical inventory of the property must be'

taken and the results reconciled wittr the properly records at least once every two yean. (3) A contol slntem must be

developed to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, darnage, or theft of the properly. Any loss, 9*gg, or theft

shall bi investigated. (4) Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep the property in good

condition. (5) Iithe grantee or subgrantee is authorized or required to sell the property, proper sales procedures must

be established to ensure the highest possible return (e) Disposition. When original or replacement equipnrent

acquired under a grant or subgrant is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities

currentty orpreviously supported by a Federal agency, disposition of the equipment Y'ill be made as follows: (l)
Iterns oiequipment with a current per-unit fair market value ef lsss rhan $5,000 may be retaine4 sold or otherwise

airpor"a oi*ith oo firther obligation 1o 16s swarding agency. (2) Iterns of equipnrent with a current per unit fair

,*ikrt value in excess of $5,000 may be retained or sold and the awarding agency shall have a right to an amount

calculated by multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the awarding agency's share of the

equipment. (3; to 
""r"r 

where a gnntee or subglantee fails to take appropriate disposition actions, the awarding

uj"""y may direct the grantee or subgranteelo take excess and disposition actions. (f) Federal equipment. In the

eient a grantee or subgnntee is provided federally-owned equipment: (l) Title will rernain vested i" the Federal

Governirent. (2) Grantees or subgrantees will manage the equipment in accordance witb Federal agency nrles and

p-r"a*"t, andsubmit an uot*iinuentory listing. (3) When the equipment is no longer needed, the grantee or

subgrantee will request disposition instructions from the Federal agency. (g) Right to tansfer title. The Federal

u*uidiog ag"ncy rnay reserve the right to tansfer title to the Federal Government or a third party named by the

awarding agency when such a third party is otherwise eligible under existing statutes. Such tansfers shall be subject

to the following standards: (l) The properly shall be identified in the grant or otherwise made known to the grantee

in writing. (2) The Federal awarding agency shall issue disposition instruction within 120 calendar days after the end

ofthe Federal support ofthe project for which it was acquired. Ifthe Federal awarding agency fails to issue

disposition instructions within the 120 calendar-day period the grantee shall follow 31.32(e). (3) When title to

equipment is fiansferred, the gnntee shall be paid an amount calculated by applying the percentage ofparticipation

irthe purchase to the current fair market value ofthe property.

Sec.3l.33 SuPPlies'

(a) Title. Title to supplies acquired under a Srant or subgrant will vest

[lPaee 3361J

upon acquisition, in the grantee or subgrantee respectively. (b) Disposition. Ifthere is a residual inventory ofunusgd

supplies exceeding $5,000 in total aggregate fair market value upon termination or completion of the award, and if

IXHIBIT fr paGE 2o _



1,2

the supplies are not needed for any other federally sponsored programs or projects, the grantee or subgrantee shall

conpensate fts 3v/ilding agency for its share'

Sec.31.34 CoPYnghts'

The Federal awarding agency reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce' publish or

otherwise use, and to aritfrorle ottters to use, for Federal Government purposes: (a) The copyright in any work

developed under a grant, subgrant, or conftact undera granl.or subgrant; and @) Any righs ofcopyright to which a

gr""t"r, ,"ugantee or a conhactor Purchases ownership with grant support.

Sec. 31.35 Subawards to debarred and suspendedparties'

Grantees and subgtantees must not make any award or permit any award (subgrant or contact) at any tier to any

oartv which is debaned or suspended or is otherwise eicluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal

ffii;;"-;t**o ""a"r 
Executive order 12549, "Debarment and Suspension'"

Sec. 3 1.36 Procurement'

(a) states. when procuring property and services under a grant, a state will follow the same policies and procedures

it uses for proc'renrcnts tli" iis non-Federal firnds. The State will ensure that every purchase order or other contract

includes any clauses ,equ-ireJby nederal statutes and executive orders andtheirimplementing regulations. other

grantees and subgrantr"r *itt fouo* p*"gr"phs (b) throug! (i) in this section. (b) Procruemcnt standards' (l)

Grantees aud subgrantees will use their own procruement procedures which reflect applicable state and local laws

;d ,A;;*, p.-rovided that the procurements conforrn to applicable Federal law and the standards identified in

this section. (2) Grantees and subgrantees will maintain a contract administation system which ensures tbat

contactors perform in accordanc, *itl tt" terms, conditions, and specifications oftheir conhacts or purchase orders'

(3) Grantees and subgrantees will maintain a written code of standards of conduct goveming the 
ryrforyan3e 

of their

l*r"lr"* *gaged ii the award and adminisnation of contracts. No erployee, offtcer or agent of the grantee or

;f,"*,;; ,niir-purti"ipate in selection, or in the award or administration of a contact supported by Federal funds if
a conllict of interesf ,".i - uppur"og would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when: (i) The erryloyee'

officer or agent, (ii) Any member of his immertiut" fu*ily, (iii) His orher partner, or (iv) An organization which

enploys, or is about to errploy, any of the above, has a trnancial or other interest in the firm selected for award' The

"."T,rl( ", 
,ubg'"or"",, oin""ir, enployees or agents will neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of

il*"tury uufu.-fro- conhactors, potendal conbactors, or parties to subagteements' Grantee and subgrantees rnay set

milinrri-res where the frnanciai interest is not substantial or the gift is an'nsolicited item of nominal intinsic

;.h"-i; th, extent permitted by State or local law or regulations, such standards or conduct will provide for

penalties, sanctions, o, otn", aisciptinary actions for violations of such standards by the gantee's and subgrantee's

oflficers, enployees, or agents, or Ly contactors or their agents' The awarding agency may in regulation provide

additional prohibitions iative to rial, apparen! or potential connicts of interest. (4) Grantee and subgrantee

;;;;;;;ll provide ioi u trui"* of iioposed procurernents to avoid purchase of unnecessary or duplicative

items. consideration ,nouta L" given to'consolidating or breaking out procurernonts to obtain a more econonical

[[Page 337]l

purchase. lVhere appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus purchase altematives, and any other

I*rG*r analysis to determine the most economical approach. (5) To foster greater economy and efficiency,

grantees and subgrantees are encouraged to enter into staie and local intergovemmental agreements for procurement

or use ofcommon goods and servicesl (6) Grantees and subgrantees are encoulaged to use Federal excess and

;;iil;r;;*y;il oif*rn"ri"g nLw equipment and property whenever such use is feasible and reduces project

;;. (itd#es and subgrantees are enrouraged to use value engineering clauses in conbacts for construction

;r"jd;f *fticient size to-offer reasonable opporninities for cost reductions' value engineeriug is a systematic and

creative anaylsis of each conract item or task io ensure that its essential function is provided at the overall lower

."ri.-ftl6*es and subgrantees will make awards only to responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform

,"""ri"i"rry *der the teriu and conditions of a proposed procurenrnt. consideration will be given to such matters

as contactor integnfy, ."reri*.. with public potitg te"oid of pas!performance, and financial and tecimical

resoluces. (9) Grantees aoisubgrantees will maintain records suflicient to detail the significant history of a

procwement. These records wif include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: rationale for the method of
jr".*r.""r, selection of contract EPe, conEactor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price' (10)

EXHIBIT ,4 pAGEL



13

Grantees and subgrantees will use time and material bPe contacts only-- (i) After a determination that n9 9dt:i.
contract is suitable, and (ii) If the conhact incrudes r ."iti"g price that_the contactor exceeds at its own risk. (l l)

Grantees and subgrante", uton" will be responsible, in accoidance with good administative practice and sound

business judgmen! for the settlement of,ali contractual and adminishative issues arising out of procurernents' These

issues include, but are not limited to source evaluation, protests, disputes, and clairns' These standards do not relieve

the grantee or s.,bgrantee of any contactual responsibilities under its contacts. Federal agencies will not substitute

their judgment for that of the grantee or subgrantee unless the matter is primarily a Federal conceln' violations of

law will be referred to th" loril, state, or Federal authority having properjurisdiction. (12) Grantees and subgrantees

will have protest procedures to'handle and resolve disputes relating.to their procurements and shall in all instances

disclose information t";;id the protest to the awariing agency. A protestor must exhaust all administrative

remedies with the grantee and-subgrantee before pursunt ultotist with the Federal agency. Reviews ofprotests by

the Federal agency r^,i[ba fimitedio: (i) violations orre-aeiat law or regulations and the standards of this section

f"iJ"ir* "isl"tl 
o, local law v/ill b; under the jurisdiction of state or-local authorities) and (ii) Violations of the

g'ntee,s or subgnntee's frotest procedur_es_ fo, fuil*" to review a conplaint or protest' Protests received by the

Federal agency other tnan those specified above will be referred to thrc grantee or subgrantee. (c) Corryetition' (1)

All procurerrioo, ou*n*io* *riu, conducted in a manner providing fuil and open conpetition consistent with the

standards of Sec. 3 1.36. Some of the situations considered to be resnictive of corpetition include but are not limited

to: (i) ptacing unreasonablc requirements on firms in order for them to qualiry to do business, (ii) Requiring

unnecessary experience and excessive bondi.g, (iii) Nonconpetitive pricing practices between firrns or betwesn

affiliated conqranies, (iv) Nonconpetitive awards to corsultants that are on retainer conbacts, (v) organizational

;#;;;i;Lr"st, (vi)'speci$n"g oory a "brand name" product instead of allowing "an equal" product to be

offered and describing

[[Page 338]l

the perforrnance of other relevant requirements of the procurement, and (vii) Any arbitary action in the

;;;;;;", p;"cess. (2) Grantees and subgrantees will conduct procwemenrs in a manner that prohibits the use of

statutorily or administratively irryosed in- stut"-ot local geographical preferences in the evaluation ofbids or

;;;#, "-""p, 
in those cuses where upplicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic

;;;i";;;. N"tili"g i" this section pre"rrpt, stut, licensing 9*t' Ilt1 contacring for architectural and engineering

(A/E) servicer, g"ogtphi, location rnay 6e a selection critiria provided its application leaves an appropriate number

of qualified firm.s, given th;;"*" anaiize of the projec! to conpete fgr the contact' (3) Grantees will have written

;il;;;;"ra*J, r*pr*urement ransacrions. Thise procedures will ensure tlat all solicitations: (i) lncorporate

a clear and accurate O"r#ptio" of the technical requirements for the material, produc! or service to be procwed'

such description shall no! in conpetitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict compctition' The

il;il;ffiy include a state-"ot ortn, q*litative nature of the rnaterial, product or service to be procured" and

when necessary, shall set forth those minimurn essential characteristics and staniards to vaich it must conform if it is

;;;ililiended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all possible. when it is irpractical

or uneconomical to make a clear uoi u""*uti description of the technical requirements, a "brand natne or equal"

;;J;;; ;t t, *"a 
"r 

a means-to deg" ft. p"tior.-r" or other salient requirercnts of a procurement' The

;;ilJ;; of the named brand which must be met by offerors.shall be clearly stated; and (ii) Identify all

,lq"i"-*o which the off"rorc rnust fulfill and all other iactors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals' (4)

Grantees and subgpntees will ensure that all prequalified lists of-persons, fit:Irls, or products which are used in

ilrfui"; ;*A, ia ,"ruires are current and include enough qualified sources to ensure maximum op€n and free

conpetition Also, grantees and subgrantees will not preclude potential bidden from qualiffing during the

;;i#;;;;;"rioi.iA consruction grants awarded under Title II of the clean water Act are subject to the

;.il;;.'B;y American" requiremints in paragraphs (c)(5) (i)-(iii) of this section. Section 2 I 5 of the clean water

Act requires that contractors give preferencJ to t[t use ofdomestic material in the construction of EPA-funded

fiea'nent works. (i) contactJrs must use domestic construction materials in preference to nondornestic rnaterial if it

;;;;;;;*'tt- o percent higher than the.bid or offered price of the nondomestic material, including all costs

of delivery to the constu'ction site ind any applicable_duty,-whithcr o.r.not assessed. The grantee wil nonnally base

,fr"-"""eri",ions on prices and costs in effect on the date of opening bids or proposals' (ii) The award olficial may

waive the Buy Americao prwision uased on factors the award offrcial considers relevant, including: (A) such use is

not in the public interest; ie1 m" cost is unreasonable; (c) The Agency's available resoruces are not sufficient to

EXH|B|T T -PAGF 2^ -



l4

irnnlement the provision, subject to *re Deputy Adminishator's concurrence; (D) The articles, materials or supplies

;i.-#ffi;;ilJ il, *"d o, the articlis, materials or supplies from which they are manufachued are not mined

oroduced or manufactured in the united States in sufficient and reasonably available commerical quantities or

#:i":H;;1fi;;dparticularproject; or (E) Application of lis pnvirion is conrary to multilateral

government pro"*"-"J u'gr""-rot , ,utlrrt to tlt ptputy Adminisnato/s concunence' (iiD AII bidding

documents, ,,rUugf""-rot i*a" if upptop"ate, requests fOi proposalsmust contain the following "BuyAmerican"

provision: In accordance with section 215 of the Ciean water Act (33 U'S'C' l25l etseq') and inplementing EPA

regulations, the

[fPage 339]l

contractor agrees that preference will b€ given to domestic construction materials by the confiactor' subcontactors'

materialmen and suppliers in the performance of this subagreement. (d) Methods of procurement to be followed--(1)

procurement by small purcnuse piocedures. small purchas=e procedures are those relatively siryle and informal

oroculement methods for securing services, suppliis, or other ptoryry9"t do not cost more than the sinplified
t#ffiffiffi:;;"ld fi,.;i at ar [.s.c. 403(lii (currently seiar $too,oo0). If small purchase procedures are used"

price or rate quotatiors shall be obtained from an'adequate number of qualified sources' (2) Procurement by sealed

bids (formal uau.rtiriogj;i* are rybticll solicited and a firm-fixed-price contract (luqp sum or unit price) is

awarded to the responsiut, uiaa", *lorc bid, conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the invitatiori

for bids, is the lowest i";;;. Th" sealed bii lethod 
is the prefened lethod for procuring construction' if the

condirions in 31.36(dxixillppry (i) In order for sealed bidiing to be feasible, the following conditions shouldbe

present (A) A corrpl",", ihi,Lir,'and realistic specification- or-purchase description is available; (B) Two or more

responsible bidders *, *i1ioi ani able to 
"o-*n"tr 

effectively *a rot thc business; and (c) The procurerrnt lends

itself to a f'rn fixsd price con:ract and the selection of the successnrf b-i{der can be rnade principally on the basis of

orice. (ii) If sealed bids ; used, the following requirements anP$ (e) The invitation for bids will be publicly

advertised and bids ,f,"U l" ,olicited from an adequate n tmei bf trnoy suppliers, providing them sufficient time

prior to the date set for ;;;6;iiAs; 1B) The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and

oertinent attachments, ,nu1l d"i., the items or services in order for the bid_der_lq properly respond; (c) All bids will

i:1ffil:ffiffi;"1'ti" o-. -a place prescribed in the invitation for bids; (D) A frm fixed-price conbact award

will be made in *rlti"g lo tn" lowest responsive and responsible ti-aA;1 Where specified in bidding documents'

factors such as discounts, transportation cosg and life cycle costs shall be considered in determining which bid is

lowesL payrnent aiscounts *tfody be used to determine the low bid when prior experience indicates that such

discounts are usually "[* "J"-"ge 
of; and (E) Any or all bids nTy be rejected if there is a sound-docum:nted.

reason. (3) procurement by conpetitive proporals. The technique of iorqpetitive proposals is norrnally conducted

with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a fxid-price or cost-reimbrusement tlpe conhact is

awarded'Itisgenerallyusedwhenconditionsarenotappropriateforth.guseofsealedbids'Ifthismethodisuse4
the following requir"m"nr-"ppry, trl Requests-for pr"p*"[ will be publicized and identis alr evaluation factors and

their relative iorpottu""t ,q"y';tpo*" to publicizld i"q"tttt for proposals shall be honored to the maximum extsnt

practical; (ii) proposals will be ,oiirit"d from an adequaie oumUeiof qualified sources; (iii) Grantees and

subgrantees will have a method for conducting technical evaruations of the proposals received and for selecfirg

awardees; (iv) Awards *itt U, made to-the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous to the pro$ant

with price and other factors considered; and (v) Grantees and subgrantees may use conpetitive proposal procedures

;'r-d;itf,r.d"^-u"r"a ptor*ement oiarctruiecturauengineering (A/E) professional services whereby conpetitors'

q""ifil":,f"* ur" 
"u.t*i"a 

*a tnt most qiralified conpetitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and

reasonable corp€nsatro' The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in procruement

of A/E professional ,"*i"rr. It cannot be usedto purchase other tlpes of services though A/E flrms are a potential

source io perform the proposed effort'

[[Page 3a0]l

(o)rro"*r-rntbynoncorryetitiveproposalsisprocurementthrou$solicitationofaproposalfromonlyone
source, or after solicitation of u n*tiUtiof sources, corrpetition is determined inadequate' (i) Procurement by

noncorpetitin, propor.lr}y be used only when the award of a contract is infeasible under small purchase

procedures, sealed bids ot loitp"titiut proposals and one of the following circumstances applies: (A) The item is

available only from. r*gfr #r"t; 1giThe public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a

ExHtBtT A" _pAGE 23



15

delay resulting from corrpetitive solicitation; (C) The awarding agency authorizes noncompetitive proposals; or @)
Aftei solicitation of a number of sources, conpetition is determined inadequate. (ii) Cost analysis, i.e., veriffing the

proposed cost data, the projections of the data, aud the evaluation of the specific elements of costs and profits, is

i"quir"a. (iii) Grantees and subgrantees may be required to submit the proposed procurement to the awarding agency

foipre-award review in accordance with paragraph (g) of this section. (e) Contacting with small and minority firrns,

women's business enterprise and labor surplus area firms. (1) The grantee and subgrantee will take all necessary

affgmative steps to assure that minority frms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used

when possible- (2) Atrrmative steps shall include : (i) Placing qualified srnall and minority businesses and women's

business enterprises on solicitation lists; (ii) Assuring that small aud minority businesses, and women's business

enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; (iii) Dividing total requirements, when economically

feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and

women's business enterprises; (iv) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement pennits, which encouage

participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises; (v) Using the services and assistance

of O" 
'S1nutt 

Business Adminishatio4 and the Minority Business Developrnent Agency of the Departnrent of
Commerce; and (vi) Requiring the prime conhactor, if subcontacts are to be le! to take the affirrnative steps listed

in paragraphs (eX2) (i) tbrough (v) ofthis section. (f) Contact cost and price. (l) Grantees and subgrantees must

perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every procurement action including confact modifications. The

method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation, but as a

starting poing grantees must make independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals. A cost analysis must be

p"*ormia when the offeror is required to submit the elernents of his estirnated cost e.g., under professional,

consulting and architectural engineering services conhacts. A cost analysis will be necessary when adequate price

conpetition is lacking, and for sole source procurements, including contact modifications or change orders, unless

prici resonableness can be established on the basis of a catalog or market price of a commercial product sold in

substantial quantities to the general public or based on prices set by law or regulation, A price analysis will be used

in all other instances to determine the reasonableness ofthe proposed contact price. (2) Grantees and subgrantees

will negotiate profit as a separato element of the price for each conhact in which there is no price corrpetition and in

all cases where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit consideration will be given to the

corrplexity of the work to be performed, the risk bome by the conbac'tor, the contactor's investnenl.the amountof

subcontacting, the quality of its record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding

geographical area for similar work. (3) Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contacts under grants will be

allowable only to the extent that costs

[[Page 3al]l
incurred or cost estimates included in negotiated prices are consistent with Federal cost principles (see Sec. 31.22)'

Grantees may reference their own cost principles that corrply with the applicable Federal cost principles' (4) The

cost plus a percentage ofcost and percentage ofconstruction cost methods ofcontracting shall not be used' (g)

awaraing agency review. (l) Grantees and subgrantees must make available, upon request of the awarding agency'

technicaispecifications on proposed procurernents where the awarding agency believes such review is needed to

ensure ttaf Oe item and/or service specified is the one being proposed for purchase. This review generally will take

place prior to the time the specification is incorporated into a solicitation document. Howe.,'er, if the grant€e or

subgrantee desires to have the review acconplished after a solicitation has been developed, the awarding agency rnay

stilireview the specifications, with such review usually limited to the technical aspects of the proposed purchase. (2)

Grantees and subgrantees must on request make available for awarding agency pre-award review procurement

documents, such as requests for proposals or invitations for bids, independent cost estimates, etc. when: (i) A
grantee's or subgrantee's procurement procedures or operation fails to conply with the procurement standards in this

Jection; or (ii) The procurement is expected to exceed the sinplified acquisition tbreshold and is to be awarded

without corryetition or only one bid or offer is received in response to a solicitation; or (iii) The procurement which

is expected to exceed the simplified acquisition threshold, specifies a "brand name" product; or (iv) The proposed

"**i ir more than the simplified acquisition tbreshold and is to be awarded to other than the apparent lowbidder

uuder a sealed bid procurement; or (v) A proposed contact modification changes the scope ofa contract or increases

the confiact amount by more than the simplified acquisition threshold. (3) A grantee or subgrantee will be exenpt

from the pre-award review in paragraph (gX2) of this section if the awarding agency determines that its procurement

systerns conply with the standards of this section. (i) A grantee or subgrantee may request that its procurement

EXHIBIT A PAGE 2T



r6

svstem be reviewed by the awarding agency to determine whether its system meets these standards in order for its

:i]*fr;;;;igli]c"orrully, thesJreviews shall occur where there is a continuous high-dollar tunding, and

third-party contracts ar" 
"wardei 

on a regular basis. (ii) A grantee or subgrantee may self-certiff its procurement

;;#ilrJi-r"rtift""tion shall not limit the awarding agency's right to survey the system' Under a

self_certification procedure, awarding agencies may wishlo rely on written assurances from the grcntee or subgrantee

;;; il;;lying with these standids-. A grantee or subgrantee will cite specific nrocg{r|e1' regulations,

standards, etc., as ueing in corrpliance withlhese requirerients and have its system available for review' (h) Bonding

requirements. For construction or facility inprovement contacts or subconhacts exceeding the sirplified acquisition

i#;;i4 the awarding ug.ory .o"y accept tie bondi.g policy and requirements of the grantee or subgrantee

provided the awarding "gl*in* "rar 
u determination that 

-the 
awarding agency's interest is adequately protected'

If such a determinatioo fr, not uren made, the minimum requirements shall be as follows: (l) A bid guarantee from

each bidder equivalent to fiu, p"rrro, of the bid price. The 
;'bid guarantee" s-hall consist of a frm commitnent such

* 
" 

tia U"rq certified rrr""Utt other negotiabli instrument acconpanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will'

;;;;#e of his bid, execute such conhactual documents as may ue required within tle time specified.(2) A

;"#;;;""J "irn" 
p* of the conhactor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "performance bond" is one

;;;;,"d in connectioo tuith u contact to secure fulfillment of all the

[[Page3a2])
contractor,s obligations under such conract, (3) A payment bond on-the part ofthe coutractor for 100 percent ofthrc

""it 
.", pri... ,i..p"y-rot bond" is one executed in connection with a contact to assure payment as required by law

;;ll;i; ,,rppiyiog labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract. (i) contract

iij;ffi. e gr*t"r'shd subgrantee's contacts must contain provisions in paragraph (i) of this section. Federal

;;;"1;r;. plr-itt"a to r"qoiil chan_Bes,11medies, changed conditio"s, access and records retention' suspension of

work, and other clauses appioved Uy tf,e Omce.of federaiProcurement Policy. (l) Administrative, contactual' or

legal remedies in instances where contactors violate or breach conmct terms, and provide for such sanctions and

;;;;", as may be appropriate. (contracts more than the sirrplified acquisition threshold) (2) Termination for cause

and for convenience uv tne grantie or subgrantee including thi manner by which it will be effe9fd and the basis for

senlement. (A1 contracts in-excess of $10;000) (3) corrpliance with Fxecutive order 11246 of Septeriber 24,1965,

.rri irJ:nq*l Erployrnent opportunity," as aminded by Executive order 11375 of october 13, 1967, and as

supplemented in Department of Lubor rrgol"tio* (41 CFR chapter ggl'JAtt construction conhacts awarded in

excess of $10,000 by grantees and their contractors or subgrantees) (4) Compliance with the coqeland

::;l-K;kba"r" ,tctirs U.S.c. 874) as supplemented inbeparunent of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 3)' (All

contacts and subgrants for construction or iepair) (5) conpliance _with 
the Davis-Bacon +ct (40 u.s'c' 276a to

276a-7)as supplemented by Deparfnent offaU"i regulations (29 CFR part 5). (Construction contracts in excess of

$2000 awarded by grantees andsubgrantees when required by Federal grant program legislatiod (6) Conpliance

ttn i""tio^ roj ana l0z of the cJnract work Hours and Safety standards Act (40 u.s.c. 327-330) as

supplemented by oeparurent of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). (Consruction contracts awarded by grantees and

srrbgrante€s in excess of $2000, and in excess of $zsoo for other contracts which involve the enployment of

#ffi;;.i"r*itzl Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to reporting. (8)

Notice of awarding agenry r"quirements andiefrrlations pertaining to patent rights with reqpect to any discovery or

ilu"oaio" wnich arise! or Is developed in the course of or under such contact. (9) Awarding agency requirements

ilJrrg"l",r"^ pertaininJio ropyttghts 
"ol lglp h data. (10) Access by the grantee, the subgrantee, th9 Federal

gr.""i 
"g*ry, 

'o, 
cor$'tottei cenerat or tnJ unitea States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any

books, documents, pupri, and records of the contactor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the

;"rd;;uog'uua,, ixamination, excerpts, and tanscriptions. (11) Retention of all required records for tbree

years after grantees o, ,ubgr*,t., .ult" final payments and all other pending rnatters are closed' (12) cgnnliance

ffi Jfft;r"iiril"a-a", orders, or requiriments issued under section 306 of the CleanAir Act(42 U.s.c.

iiiziiliCtion 508 otm, 
'ct"an 

water Act (33 u.s.c. 1368), Executive order 11738, and Environmental

pr"",ii6" erro"y rrgut"tions (40 CFR part li). (Contacts, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of

Sioiipool (ri) M-anaatory saniards ani policies relating to energy effrciency which are contained in the State

;rgy;il;ruation plan issued in corryliance with the Cnergy loiicy and conservation Act (Pub' L' 94-163, 89

stat. g7l). (j) payment to consultants. (i) npe will limit its participation in the salary rate (excluding overhead) paid

to individual consultants retaincd by grantees or by a grantei's contractors or subcontactors to the maximum daily

IXHIBIT PAGE 5



l

17

rate for a GS-I8. (Grantees may, however, pay consultants more than this amount)' This limitation applies to

consultation services of designated

[[Page 343]l

individuals with specialized skills who are paid at a daily or hourly rate. This rate does not include tansportation aud

subsistence costs for travel performed; grantees will pay these in accordance with their normal travel reimbursement

;;;;;. (ilt L. 99-591). (2) Subageemelts witu rrryos 9-t.t:1t*:]hch are awarded using the procurcment

irq["*"r" in this part 
"i" 

ir6t affecled by this limitation. (k) use of the same architect or engineer during

;;;;;;"r. (1) If tie g*"t"" is satisfied with the qualifications and performance of the architect or engineer who

ffiidil;t or all of tie facilities planning or design services for a waste-water treatnent works project and wishes

to retain that fil.m or individual during constuction of the project, it may do so without firrther public notice and

;;;il;;;iqualificationq providedl (i) The grantee received a facilities planning (step 1) or desip grant (step 2),

""Jr"i"rl"a 
the architect oi etrgioeet in accordance with EPA's procurement regulations in effect when EPA

;;;; flr" ;;t; or (ii) The a:ward official approves noncompetitive procurement under Sec. 31.36(d)(4) for

reasons other than sirryly using the same individual or firm that provided facilities phnning or desip services for

;;;il ;r (iii) The granteJattests trra!: (e) The initial request for proposals clearly stated the possibility that the

fi#"iirairiduaf selecid could be awarded a subagreement for services during constuction; and (B) The firm or

ililil;i** selected for facilities planning or design services in accordance with procedures specified in this

[!.i;;. (C) No erryloyee, ofticer or agent of the grantee, any me,q$r of their immediate families, or their parhers

l""i?,oii&"t or otieiiot"rest in the firm selected for award; and (D) None of the grantee's offtcers, enployees or

alents solicited or accepted gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from contactors or other parties to

.""i.gr""-*o. (2) Howevet, if Ut grantee uses the procedures in paragraph (k)(l) of this section to retain an

architect or engineer, any Step 3 subagreements between the architect or engineer and the grantee must meet all of

the other procurement provisions in Sec' 31'36'

[53 FR 8068 and 8087, Mar. 11, 1988, and amended at 53 FR 8075, Mar' 1l' 1988;60 FR 19639' 19644,Apr' 19'

lee5l

Sec.3l.37 Subgrants.

(a) states. states shall follow state law and procedures when awrrling and administering subgrants (whether on a

iJr, *i-u*rement or fixed amount basis) of frnancial assistance to local and Indian tribal govemnrnts. states shall:

iift;; ,hJ"n".y ,utgr*t includes any clauses required by Federal statute and executive orders and their

iorpr"-.',ti"g ,"gul"tionr] 12) Ensure that subgrant""t ate aware of requirements irryosed upon them by Federal

,"1i* ."a,;g"fition; (3)Ensure that a provision for conpliance with Sec. 31.42 is placed in every cost

reimbursement subgrant; and (4) conform any advances of grant funds to subgrantees substantially to the same

,*l-a, "iti.i"g--a 
amount that apply to cash advances by Federal agencies. (b) All other grantees. All other

;;;;rh"lif"11i.'n7 the provisions oiihis part which are applicable to awarding agencies when awarding and

administering subgrants 1'*n"o"r on a costieimbursement oi rrxec amount basis) of financial assistance to local and

Indian tribal gou"*"ot". Grantees shall: (l) Ensure that every subgrant includes a provision for corpliance with

ai, ourt (2) insure that every subgant includes any clauses required by Federal :tatute and executive orders and

,#"il1|-fi,;G tegutatio*; unJ 1r1 that subgrantees are awareof requl"-"t 
:eosed_upon 

thel by

Federal statutes and regulations. (c) iiceptions. By their own terrns, certain provisions of this part do not apply to

,rn-u*ra and administation of subgranrs: (1) Section 31.10; (2) section 3l'l l;

[[Page 3aa]l

(3) The letter-of-credit procedures specified in Treasury Regulations at 3 I CFR part 205, cited in Sec. 3 I .2 I ; and (4)

Section 3 1.50.

Reports, Records, Retention, and Enforcement

Sec. 31.40 Monitoring and reporting programperfonnance'

(a) Monitoring by grantees. Grantees are responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of grant and subgrant

suooorted activities. Grantees must monitor grant and subgrant supported activities to assure conpliance with

;:ffiilil"[],rquitr.*,r and that perfonnance goui. utr being achieved. Grantee monitoring must cover each

ffi;; il;i", "i 
irti"ity. (b) Nonconstruction pe*ormance reports. The Federal ag€ncy may, if it decides that

rxr-ilBrT 4 -PAGE u.-



18

perfbrmance information available from subsequent applications contains sufftcient inforrnation to meet its

nrocrarffnatic needs, require the grantee to submit a performance report only upon expiration or termination of grant

;ffi;-;"ss waived by the Federal agency this report will be due on the same date as the final Financial Status

iaJp*. f rl Grantees shali submit annual performance reports unless the awarding agency requires quarterly or

;#-;;; reports. However, performance reports will not be required more frequently than quarterly. Annual

reoorts shall bi due 90 days aftir the grant year, quarterly or semi-annual reports shall be due 30 days after the

il;;g period. The final performance report will be due 90 days after the expiration or termination of grant

,.iooo.t.iiuiustified t"qu.rt is submitted by a gnntee, the Federal agency may extend the due date for any

;'i";;r;;;ort. additionally, requirements for unnecessg n-efrmance reports rnay be waived by the Federal

ug"n"y. (2) peri'ormance reportswilltontairr for each granl brief information on the following: (i) A conparison of

uJtouiu"tooplishments to the objectives established for the period. Where the output of the project can be

;;-d;;;;orrputation of the iost per unit of output may be requircd if that information will be usetul' (it) The

i"*"* r", slppage if established objectives were not met. (iii) Additional pertinent information including, when

,ppi"pri.rr, u"uryiir and explanation of cost ovef,runs or high unit costs. (3) Grantees will not be requirqd to submit

#; ih- til" originat and two copies of perfonnance reports. (4) Grantees will adhere to the standards in this

,ection in prescribing performance reporting requirements for subgrantees. (c) Construction perfomlance reports. For

tt 
" -"rt 

pua on-site fechnical inspections and certified percentage-of-corrpletion data are relied on heavily by

Federal agencies to monitor progress under consEuction grants and subgrants. The Federal agency will require

"JJiti""uif"rr*l 
performancr r"pottr only when considered necessary, and never more frequently than quartcrly. (d)

iigoin"*, developments. Eventsrnay occur between the scheduled perforrnance reporting dates which have

sifrificant inpact upon the grant or subgrant supported activity. In such cases, the grantee must inform the Federal

^{"n"uur 
r-o as the following tlpes of conditions become known: (l) Problems, delayn, or adverse conditions

;T;f;i;i"rially impair oe utlity to meet the objective of the award. This disclosure must include a staternent

oi,n" u"rioo taken, or conterrplated, and any assistance needed to resolve the situation. (2) Favorable developments

*fri"U 
"*Uf, -""tiog tirne schedules and odectives sooner or at less cost than anticipated or producing more

beneficial results than originally planned. (e) Federal agencies may make site visits as warranted by program needs'

iDtw;;r;;;ensions. (I) Feieial agencies may waive any performance report required by this part if not needed.

(2).fhegrantee ,*y *uru" uoy performance report from a subgrantee when not needed. The grantee rray extend the

due date for any performance report from a subgrantee ifthe grantee

[[Page 345]l

will still be able to meet its performance reporting obligations to the Fedsral agency'

Sec. 31.41 Financial rePorting'

(a) General. (l) Exccpt as provided in parlerafhs (a) (2) and (5) of this sectiorq grcntecs will use only the forms

#"*;ti"; urug,upht(a) through (e) of thil section, and such supplementary or other forms as rnay from tirn to

;;6" 
"utr,orzJa 

uy o1v4t, for: (i) submitting financial reports to Federal agencies, or (ii) Requesting 1{vance; 
or

;"i"rb;r;nts when letters of credit are not used. (2) Grantees need not apply the fornu prescribed in this section

il;;hg with their subgrantees. However, grantees shall not irnpose more burdensome requirements on

,uugruo1ler. (3) Grantees shall followaU applicable standard and supplemental Federal agency insrugtlns approved

ty 5fvg to the extent required under thelgerwork ReductionAct of 1980 for use in connection with forrns

siecifred in paragraphs O) tlrougb (e) of this section. Federal agencies may issue substantive supplementary

#;;;;;;;iO tl" upprouut ofbrnng. Federal agencies may shade out or instry9! Se srantee to disregard any

line item that the Federal ugJo"y finds unnecessary for its decisionrnaking purposes. (4) Grantees will not be

r"tuired to submit more thin the original and two copies of forms required under this part. (5) Federal agencies may

pro.,ria. conputer outputs to grantees to expedite or conhibute to the accuracy of reporting. Federal agencies may

I"."pi tn"rrquitrtt iniormation from granties in machine usable format or corputer printouts instead of prescribed

fo-s. (O) Federal agencies maywaive any report r€quired by thrs section if not needed. (7) Federal agencies may

;t""d in, au" date of any financial report upon receiving a justified request from a grantee. (b) Financial status

nrp"n-if l Fonn Grantees will use Standard Form 269 or 269A, Financial status R€'port, to re,port the status of

funds for all nonconstruction grants and for construction grants when required in accordance with Sec.

gijit"ltzXiii). (2) Accountin'g basis. Each grantee will report program outlays and program income on a cash or

,."-iiirXri as priscribed by the awarding agency. If the Federal agency requires accrual information and the

EXHIBIT PAGE

6L



t

L9

srantee's accounfing records are not nonnally kept on the accrual basis, the grantee shall not be required to convert

il ;;;*c syste-m but shall develop such accrual information through and analysis of the documentation on hand.

iilirrq"*..i. ih" F"drrul agency may prescribe the frequency of the report for each project or program However, ,

il;;"p; wiil not be required moie fllueltly than quarterly. If the Federal agency does not specr$ the frequency of

il i"i"rt, it will be submined annually. A final report will be.required.upon gryTtiol or tennination of grant

;;ft. 1i1 Oue date. When reports are required on a quarterly-_or semiannual basis, they will be due 30 days after

,6ii*|rit;g period. when required on an annual basis, they will be due 90 dap after thg crant year. Final rsports

;l #;;; 6o auyr after the eipiration or termination of grant support. (c) Federal Cash rransactions Report-(l)

Form- (i) For grants paid by letter or credit, Treasury check advances or electonic tansfer of funds, the grantee will

submit tile Standard Form iTz,FederulCash Transactions Repor! and when necessary its continuation sheet

Standard Form172a,unless the terms of the award exenpt the grantee from this requirement, (ii) These reports will

;;;;;y the Federal agency to monitorcash advanced to grantees and to obtain disbursement or outlay

infor*tio" for each grant from grantees. The format of the report may be adapted as appropriate when reporting is

;;;;";"elished with the assistance of automatic data processing equipmentprovided that the information to be

,rUrrin"a is not changed in substance. (2) Forecasts ofFederal cash requirements. Forecasts ofFederal cash

requirements may be required in the "Remarks" section of the report.

[[Page 346]l

(3) Cash in hands ofsubgrantees. When considered necessary and feasible by the Federal agency, grantees maybe

i"qoirra to report the amounJ ofcash advances in excess oftbree days'needs in the hands oftheir subgrantees or

"orlt 
u"to., and to provide short narrative explanations ofactions taken by the grantee to reduce the excess balances.

iqiFr"qor"r' and due date. Grantees must submit thereport no later than 15 working days following the end of each

q*.t"r. ff""irver, where an advance either by letter of credit or elecbonic transfer of funds is authorized at an

annualized rate of one million dollars or rlore, the Federal a}ency rnay require the report to be submitted within 15

;kd days following the end of each month, (d) Request for advance or reimbursement-(1) Advance payments'

Requesis for Treasury check advance payments will be submitted on Standard Fonn 270, Request for Advance or

n ilf*r"or"nt. (This fomr will aot be used for drawdowns under a letter of credil electronic fuuds transfer or when

1.rr*ury check advance payments are made to the grantee automatically on a predeteunined basis.) (2)

Reimbursements. Requests for reimbursernent under nonconstruction grants will also be submitted on Standard Form

270. (Forreimbursement requests under construction grants, see paragraph (e)(l) of this section.) (3) The frequency

for sutmitting payment requlsts is teated in Sec. 3 l.4l(bx3). (e) Outlay report and request for reimbursement for

construction prograns. (l) Grants that support constuction activities paid by reimbursern€nt method. (i) Requests

;;r;;irrrb;;r,,,eilt undei construction grants will be submitted on standard Form27l, outlay Report and Request

for Reimbursement for Construction Piograrns. Federal agencies may, however, prescribe the Request for Advance

or Reirrbursement forrn, specified in Sec. 3 I .4 I (d), instead of this forrn (ii) The freguency for submitting

reimbursement requests is treated in Sec. 31.41(bX3). (2) Grants that support construction activities paid by letter of

"r"aii "frro""i" 
n ar tansfer or Treasury check advance, (i) When a consfiuction grant is paid by letter of credit

"i"rJl"i, 
flrnds tansfer or Treasury check advances, the grantee will report its outlays to the Federal agenry using

Standard Form2Tl,Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for Constuction Prograrns' The Federal agency

will provide any necessary tp"iiul instuction. Howevel, frequency and due date shall be governed by Sec. 31'4lO)

(3t;d (a). (ii) When a construction grant is paid by Treasury check advances based on periodic requests from the

il;;,'ri; udu"o"r. will be requested on the form specihed in Sec. 3 I '4 I (d)' (iii) The Federal agency may

iuUrUt , the Financial Status Report specified in Sec. 31.41(b) for the Outlay Report and Request for

R i-Uurr"-"nt for Construction Programs. (3) Accounting basis. The accounting basis for the Outlay Report and

n"qur* for Reimbursement for Corutuction Prograrrs shall be govemed by Sec. 31'4lOX2).

Sec. 31.42 Retention and access requirements for records'

(a) Applicability. (l) This section applies to all financial and programmatic records, supporting docurnents, statistical

i".orar, and other records of grantees or subgrantees which are: (i) Required to be maintained by the tenns of rhis

pu4 progr"* regulations or the grant ageement, or (ii) Otherwise reasonably considered as periinent to program

irg"fiti"]* or thi grant agreement. (2) This section does not apply to records maintained by contractors or

sulcontactors. For a requirement to place a provision conceming records in certain kinds of contracts, see Sec.

31.36(ixl0). (b) Length of retention period. (l) Except as otherwise provided, records must be retained for three

TXHIBIT i PAGE 23



Fril

20

years fromthe starting date specified inparagraph (c) ofthis section. (2)lfany litigation, clairn, negotiation, audit or

other action involving the records has been started before the expiration ofthe 3'year period, the records must be

retained until corrpletion of the action and resolution of all

[fPage 3a7]l

issues which arise from i9 or until the end of the regular 3-year period, whichever is later. (3) To avoid duplicate

recordkeeping, awarding agencies may make special arrangements with grantees and subgrantees to retain any

records *ii"l at" continuously needed forjoint use. The awarding agency will request tansfer ofrecords to its

custody when it determines that the records possess long-term retention value. When the records are transferred to or

rnaintained by the Federal agency, the 3-year retention requirement is not applicable to the grantee or subgrantee' (c)

Starting date of retention period-(l) General. When gant support is continued or renewed at annual or other

intervais, the retention period for the records ofeach funding period starts on the day the grantee or subgrantee

submits to the awarding agency its single or last expenditure report for that period. However, if grant support is

continued or renewed quarterly, the retention period for each year's records starts on the day the grantee submits its

expenditure report for the last quarter ofthe Federal fiscal year. ln all other cases, the retention period starts on the

aay ttre grantee submits its final expendihre report. If an expenditure report has been waived the retention period

rtut6 oo thr day the report would have been due. (2) Real property and equipment records. The retentionperiod for

real properly and equipment records starts from the date of the disposition or replacement or transfer at the direction

ofthe awarding agency. (3) Records for income tansactions after grant or subgrant support. In some cases grantees

must report income after the period of grant support. Where there is such a requiremen! the reten!91n9riod for th9

records pertaining to the eaming of the income starts from the end of the grantee's fiscal year in which the income is

eamed. (a) fnairect cost rate proposals, cost allocatioru plans, etc. This paragraph applies to the following tSpes of
documents, and their supporting records: indirect cost rate cornputations or proposals, cost allocation plans, and any

similar accounting corrputations of the rate at which a particular group of costs is chargeable (such as coryuter

usage chargeback rates or conposite fringe benefit rates). (i) If submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or

other corrputation is required to be submitted to the Federal Governrnent (or to the grantee) to form the basis for

negotiation ofthe rate, then the 3- year retention period for its supporting records starts from the date ofsuch

suimission. (ii) If not submitted for negotiation. If the proposal, plan, or other corrputation is not required to be

submitted to the Federal Government (or to the grantee) for negotiation purposes, then the 3-year retention period for

the proposal plan, or computation and its supporting records starts from end ofthe fiscal year (or other accounting

periodf coveied by the proposal, pla4 or other conputation. (d) Substitution of microfiLn Copies nrade by

micronlming, photocopying, or similar methods may be substituted for the original records. (e) Access to

records-(l) Records of grantees and subgnntees. The awarding agency and the Conptoller General of the United

States, or any oftheir authorized representatives, shall have the right ofaccess to any pertinent books, documents,

papers, or other records ofgrantees and subgrantees which are pertinent to the grant, in order to make audits,

"*u-inutio*, 
excerpts, and transcripts. (2) Expiration of right of access. The rights of access in this section must not

be limited to the required retention period but shall last as long as the records are retained. (f) Restrictions on public

access. The Federal Freedom of Inforrnation Act (5 U.S.C. 552) does not apply to records Unless required by

Federal, State, or local law, grantees and subgrantees are not required to permit public access to their records.

Sec.3l.43 Enforcement

(a) Remedies for nonconpliance. If a grantee or subgrantee materially fails to conply with any term of an award,

wirether stated in a Federal statute or regulatio4 an assurance, in a State plan or application" a notice ofaward, or

elsewhere, the awarding agency may [[Page 3a8]]

take one or more of the following actions, as appropriate in the circurnstances: (l) Tenporarily wittrhold cash

payments pending corection of the deficiency by the grantee or subgrantee or more severe enforcement action by the

awarding 
"g"o.y, 

(2) Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and matching credit for) all or part of the cost of the

activity or actionnot in cornpliance, (3) Wholly or partly suspend or tenninate the current award for the grantee's or

subgrantee's prograr& (i) EPA can also wholly or partly armul the current award for the grantee's or subgrantee's

ptugru4 (ii)'[Reserved] (a) Wittrhold further awards for the progranL or (5) Take other reredies that may be legally

un"it.Ul". (b) Hearings, appeals. In taking an enforcement action, the awarding agency will provide the grantee or

subgrantee an opportunity for such hearing, appeal, or other administative proceeding to which the grantee or

sublantee is enuitea under any statute or regulation applicable to the action involved. (c) Effects of suspension and

rxi-ilBrT -L-PAGE 2f



t\+ <r' -,
.$,, i

21

ternri:ration. costs ofgtantee or subgrantee resurting from obligations incurred by the grantee or subgrantee during a

suspension or after termination of an award are not-allowable unless the awarding agency expressly authorizes them

in the notice of suspension or termination or subsequently. Other grantee or subgrantee costs during suspension or

;;;;"tion wiich are necessary and not reasonably avoidable are allowable if, (l) The costs result from

;G;; which were fropertl incurr. ed by the grantee or subgrantee before the effective date of suspension or

termination, are not io 
"itiripution 

of it, 
""4 

u tir 
".r" 

of a termination, are noncancellable, and, (2) The costs

would be allowable if the award were not suspended or expired normally at the end 
_of 

the funding period in which

the termination takes effect. (d) Relationship lo Debarment and suspension. The enforcement rgmedies identified in

this section, including ,*p""rio" and termination, do not preclude grantee or subgrantee from being subject to

"Debarment and Suspension" under B'O' 12549 (see Sec' 3l'35)'

[53 FR 8068 and 8087, Mar. 11, 1988, as amended at 53 FR 8076, Mar. 11, 1988]

Sec. 31.44 Termination for convenience'

Except as provided in sec. 31.43 awards rnay be terminated in whole or in partonly as-follows: (a) By the ayar$inc

agency with the consent of the grantee or subgrantee in which case the two parties shall agree upon the termination

conditions, including the efrective date and inthe case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated or (b) By

the grantee or subgrantee upon written notification to the awarding agency, setting fgrth the.relons for such

;;il;;G .iffective d'ate, and in the case ofpartial termination, the portion to be terminated. However, if, in

the case of a partial termination, the awarding ug"oty detemines that the lsrnaining portion of the award will not

accorrplish the purposes for which the award'was made, the awarding agency may terrninate the award in its entirety

*a"rii U"t Sec' :i.+a or paragraph (a) of this section'

Sec. 31.45 QualitY assurance'

If the grantee,s project involves environrnentally related measurements or data generation, the grantee shall develop

""a 
i"ipi;*"" ioufity urr**., practices gonsisting of policies, procedures, specifications, standards; and

documentation sulficieni to produce data of quality aaequate to meet project objectives and to minimize loss of data

due to out-of-control conditions or malfunctions'

[53 FR 80?6, Mar. I l, 1988]

trYHIBIT A PAGF 3O



Deschutes County

Loan to La Pine Special Sewer District

Loan Amortization Schedule

Interest Rate 4.50%

Interest Compounded Annually: Interest will be added to loan balance

each June 30 based on number of days principal amount was outstanding.

Check # or Permit # Address Lot #

Check 

Clearing or 

Permit Issue 

Date

SDCs Applied 

(Imputed 

Payments)

Loans and 

Capitalized 

Interest

Principal 

Balance

Interest 

Accrued on 

Principal 

Balance

116351 06/28/04 240,019.01     240,019.01     

117083 07/19/04 206,109.45     446,128.46     621.42 

118602 08/23/04 24,027.19       470,155.65     1,925.07          

119872 09/17/04 248,747.87     718,903.52     1,449.11          

B56572 16561 Beesley Place 36 10/18/04 2,364.30        716,539.22     2,747.59          

121326 10/26/04 58,960.07       775,499.29     706.72 

B57092 51879 Hollinshead Pl 32 11/30/04 2,364.30        773,134.99     3,346.33          

123329 12/02/04 70,822.00       843,956.99     190.64 

B56818 16570 Findley Dr. 12/14/04 11,430.00      832,526.99     1,248.59          

B57199 16565 Beesley Pl 35 12/20/04 2,364.30        830,162.69     615.84 

124574 12/26/04 93,457.13       923,619.82     614.09 

B57091 16543 Daisy Place 8 01/18/05 2,364.30        921,255.52     2,619.03          

126387 01/31/05 42,847.02       964,102.54     1,476.53          

B57505 16551 Daisy Place 10 02/03/05 2,364.30        961,738.24     356.59 

B57506 16555 Daisy Place 11 02/03/05 2,364.30        959,373.94     - 

B57198 16547 Daisy Place 9 02/14/05 2,364.30        957,009.64     1,301.07          

127724 02/28/05 11,899.33       968,908.97     1,651.82          

B57818 51919 Fordham D 47 03/23/05 2,364.30        966,544.67     2,747.45          

129150 03/28/05 24,563.43       991,108.10     595.82 

B58048 51895 Fordham D 43 04/14/05 2,364.30        988,743.80     2,077.25          

B58396 51931 Fordham D 45 04/26/05 2,364.30        986,379.50     1,462.80          

131020 05/02/05 88,348.51       1,074,728.01  729.65 

B58398 51907 Fordham D 49 05/05/05 2,364.30        1,072,363.71  397.50 

B58397 16558 Daisy Place 5 05/23/05 2,364.30        1,069,999.41  2,379.77          

B58444 16550 Daisy Place 6 05/23/05 2,364.30        1,067,635.11  - 

B58656 51913 Fordham D 48 05/23/05 2,364.30        1,065,270.81  - 

B58657 16546 Daisy Place 7 05/23/05 2,364.30        1,062,906.51  - 

B58777 51937 Fordham D 44 05/23/05 2,364.30        1,060,542.21  - 

B58778 51925 Fordham D 46 05/23/05 2,364.30        1,058,177.91  - 

B57096 51875 Hollinshead Pl 31 06/27/05 2,364.30        1,055,813.61  4,566.11          

B59245 16559 Daisy Pl 12 06/27/05 2,364.30        1,053,449.31  - 

B59246 51871 Hollinshead Pl 30 06/27/05 2,364.30        1,051,085.01  - 

06/30/05 1,051,085.01  388.76 

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/05 added to loan balance 36,215.57       1,087,300.58  36,215.57        

B59078 51887 Fordham D 42 07/18/05 2,364.30        1,084,936.28  2,412.91          

B59240 16567 Daisy Pl 14 07/18/05 2,364.30        1,082,571.98  - 

B59242 16563 Daisy Pl 13 07/18/05 2,364.30        1,080,207.68  - 

B59243 16573 Beesley P 33 08/02/05 2,364.30        1,077,843.38  1,997.64          

B59244 16569 Beesley P 34 08/02/05 2,364.30        1,075,479.08  - 

B59474 51861 Hollinshed 28 08/12/05 2,364.30        1,073,114.78  1,325.93          

B59482 51865 Hollingshe 29 08/12/05 2,364.30        1,070,750.48  - 

B59473 51856 Hollingshe 26 08/17/05 2,364.30        1,068,386.18  660.05 

B59476 51860 Hollingshe 25 08/17/05 2,364.30        1,066,021.88  - 

B59480 51857 Hollingshe 27 08/17/05 2,364.30        1,063,657.58  - 

B59486 51864 Hollingshe 24 08/17/05 2,364.30        1,061,293.28  - 

B59541 16583 Daisy Place 16 9/6/2005 2,364.30        1,058,928.98  2,616.89          

B59544 16587 Daisy Place 17 9/6/2005 2,364.30        1,056,564.68  - 

B59545 16579 Daisy Place 15 9/6/2005 2,364.30        1,054,200.38  - 

B59547 51868 Hollinshe 23 9/6/2005 2,364.30        1,051,836.08  - 

B58069 51720 Huntington 09/14/05 20,955.00      1,030,881.08  1,037.43          

B59538 16582 Daisy Pl 4 10/25/2005 2,364.30        1,028,516.78  5,210.89          

B59543 16586 Daisy Pl 3 10/25/2005 2,364.30        1,026,152.48  - 

B59610 51872 Hollingshed 22 10/25/2005 2,364.30        1,023,788.18  - 

B61468 51875 Fordham D 94 03/29/06 2,364.30        1,021,423.88  19,564.17        

B61489 51877 Trapper G 53 03/29/06 2,364.30        1,019,059.58  - 

B61492 51883 Trapper G 52 03/29/06 2,364.30        1,016,695.28  - 

B61496 51887 Trapper G 51 03/29/06 2,364.30        1,014,330.98  - 

B61526 51880 Trapper G 95 03/29/06 2,364.30        1,011,966.68  - 

B61527 51863 Fordham D 92 03/29/06 2,364.30        1,009,602.38  - 

B61466 00000 Fordhadm D 90 4/17/2006 2,364.30        1,007,238.08  2,364.96          

B61467 51857 Fordham D 91 4/17/2006 2,364.30        1,004,873.78  - 

B61494 51869 Fordham D 93 4/17/2006 2,364.30        1,002,509.48  - 

B61530 51871 Trapper G 54 4/17/2006 2,364.30        1,000,145.18  - 

B62159 51900 Fordham D 38 06/01/06 2,364.30        997,780.88     5,548.75          

B62160 51894 Fordham D 39 06/01/06 2,364.30        995,416.58     - 

B62253 51839 Fordham 59 06/07/06 2,364.30        993,052.28     736.34 

B62254 51834 Fordham 86 06/07/06 2,364.30        990,687.98     - 

B62255 51853 Trapper 57 06/07/06 2,364.30        988,323.68     - 

B62256 51859 Trapper 56 06/07/06 2,364.30        985,959.38     - 

B62257 51844 Fordham 87 06/07/06 2,364.30        983,595.08     - 

B62258 51858 Fordham 89 06/07/06 2,364.30        981,230.78     - 

B62259 51847 Trapper 58 06/07/06 2,364.30        978,866.48     - 

C:\Users\mbethel\Desktop\LPSSD Note 12-31-2018



Deschutes County

Loan to La Pine Special Sewer District

Loan Amortization Schedule

Check # or Permit # Address Lot #

Check 

Clearing or 

Permit Issue 

Date

SDCs Applied 

(Imputed 

Payments)

Loans and 

Capitalized 

Interest

Principal 

Balance

Interest 

Accrued on 

Principal 

Balance

B61967 51874 Trapper 96 06/13/06 2,364.30        976,502.18     724.09 

B61969 51865 Trapper 55 06/13/06 2,364.30        974,137.88     - 

B62260 51852 Fordham 88 06/13/06 2,364.30        971,773.58     - 

B62161 51880 Hollinghead 20 06/21/06 2,364.30        969,409.28     958.46 

B62348 51888 Fordham D 40 06/29/06 2,364.30        967,044.98     956.13 

06/30/06 119.22 

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/06 added to loan balance 46,233.88       1,013,278.85  46,233.88        

B62349 51914 Fordham D 37 07/12/06 2,364.30        1,010,914.55  1,499.10          

B62351 51876 Hollingshed 21 07/12/06 2,364.30        1,008,550.25  - 

B62849 16594 Daisy Pl 1 08/15/06 2,364.30        1,006,185.95  4,227.62          

B62850 16590 Daisy Pl 2 08/15/06 2,364.30        1,003,821.65  - 

B62851 16591 Daisy Pl 18 08/15/06 2,364.30        1,001,457.35  - 

B62854 16595 Daisy Pl 19 08/15/06 2,364.30        999,093.05     - 

B63417 16518 Charlotte 82 10/05/06 4,254.33        994,838.72     6,281.97          

B63416 16524 Chalotte 81 02/21/07 4,254.33        990,584.39     17,048.54        

B63081 51821 Fordham 62 03/30/07 4,254.33        986,330.06     4,518.69          

B64862 16530 Charlotte 80 04/24/07 4,254.33        982,075.73     3,040.06          

B64863 16500 Charlotte 85 04/24/07 4,254.33        977,821.40     - 

B64880 51860 Fordham 79 05/07/07 4,254.33        973,567.07     1,567.19          

B65044 16495 Charlotte 68 05/24/07 4,254.33        969,312.74     2,040.49          

B65166 16512 Charlotte 83 05/31/07 4,254.33        965,058.41     836.53 

B65243 51876 Fordham D 75 06/20/07 4,254.33        960,804.08     2,379.60          

B65276 51872 Fordham D 76 06/20/07 4,254.33        956,549.75     - 

06/30/07 1,179.31          

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/07 added to loan balance 44,619.09       1,001,168.85  44,619.09        

B65376 16519 Charlotte 72 07/06/07 4,254.33        996,914.52     740.59      06/30/08 44,246.62 

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/08 added to loan balance 44,987.21       1,041,901.72  44,987.21        

B68291 16489 Charlotte 67 03/30/09 4,254.33        1,037,647.39  515.91 

06/30/09 1,037,647.39  11,817.73        

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/09 added to loan balance 47,028.76       1,084,676.15  47,028.76        

B68242 51720 Huntington 07/16/09 74,100.00      1,010,576.15  2,139.64          

B67751/2/3 16725 Burgess Rd 02/22/10 171,000.00    839,576.15     27,534.74        

06/30/10 - 839,576.15     13,249.20        

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/10 added to loan balance 42,923.58       882,499.73     42,923.58        

Paid by Pahlisch 41 09/22/10 4,254.33        878,245.40     

Paid by Pahlisch 50 09/22/10 4,254.33        873,991.07     

Paid by Pahlisch 60 09/22/10 4,254.33        869,736.74     

Paid by Pahlisch 61 09/22/10 4,254.33        865,482.41     

Paid by Pahlisch 63 09/22/10 4,254.33        861,228.08     

Paid by Pahlisch 64 09/22/10 4,254.33        856,973.75     

Paid by Pahlisch 65 09/22/10 4,254.33        852,719.42     

Paid by Pahlisch 66 09/22/10 4,254.33        848,465.09     

Paid by Pahlisch 69 09/22/10 4,254.33        844,210.76     

Paid by Pahlisch 70 09/22/10 4,254.33        839,956.43     

Paid by Pahlisch 71 09/22/10 4,254.33        835,702.10     

Paid by Pahlisch 73 09/22/10 4,254.33        831,447.77     

Paid by Pahlisch 74 09/22/10 4,254.33        827,193.44     

Paid by Pahlisch 77 09/22/10 4,254.33        822,939.11     

Paid by Pahlisch 78 09/22/10 4,254.33        818,684.78     

Paid by Pahlisch 84 09/22/10 4,254.33        814,430.45     

Paid by Pahlisch 97 09/22/10 4,254.33        810,176.12     

Paid by Pahlisch 98 09/22/10 4,254.33        805,921.79     

Paid by Pahlisch 99 09/22/10 4,254.33        801,667.46     

Paid by Pahlisch 100 09/22/10 4,254.33        797,413.13     

Paid by Pahlisch 101 09/22/10 4,254.33        793,158.80     

Paid by Pahlisch 102 09/22/10 4,254.33        788,904.47     

Paid by Pahlisch 103 09/22/10 4,254.33        784,650.14     

Paid by Pahlisch 104 09/22/10 4,254.33        780,395.81     

Paid by Pahlisch 105 09/22/10 4,254.33        776,141.48     

Paid by Pahlisch 106 09/22/10 4,254.33        771,887.15     9,139.31          

Interest through 9/30/10 09/30/10 771,887.15     761.31 

Interest Oct 1 - Dec 31, 2010 12/31/10 771,887.15     8,755.10          

Interest Jan 1 - Mar 31, 2011 03/31/11 771,887.15     8,564.78          

Interest Apr 1 - June 30, 2011 06/30/11 771,887.15     8,659.94          

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/11 added to loan balance 35,880.44       807,767.59     35,880.44        

Interest Jul 1 - Jun 30, 2012 06/30/12 36,349.54        

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/12 added to loan balance 36,349.54       844,117.14     36,349.54        

Interest Jul 1 - Sept 30, 2012 09/30/12 844,117.14     9,574.37          

Interest Oct 1 - Dec 31, 2012 12/31/12 844,117.14     9,574.37          

51720 Huntington 02/12/13 74,100.00      770,017.14     4,474.98          

Interest Feb 12 - Mar 31, 2013 03/31/13 770,017.14     4,461.88          

Interest Apr 1 - June 30, 2013 06/30/13 770,017.14     8,638.96          

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/13 added to loan balance 36,724.56       806,741.69     36,724.56        

C:\Users\mbethel\Desktop\LPSSD Note 12-31-2018



Deschutes County

Loan to La Pine Special Sewer District

Loan Amortization Schedule

Check # or Permit # Address Lot #

Check 

Clearing or 

Permit Issue 

Date

SDCs Applied 

(Imputed 

Payments)

Loans and 

Capitalized 

Interest

Principal 

Balance

Interest 

Accrued on 

Principal 

Balance

Interest Jul 1 - Sept 30, 2013 09/30/13 806,741.69     9,150.44          

Interest Oct 1 to Dec 31, 2013 12/31/13 806,741.69     9,150.44          

Interest Jan 1 to Mar 31, 2014 03/31/14 806,741.69     8,951.52          

Interest Apr 1 to Jun 30, 2014 06/30/14 806,741.69     9,050.98          

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/14 added to loan balance 36,303.38       843,045.07     36,303.38        

Interest Jul 1 - Sept 30, 2014 09/30/14 843,045.07     9,562.21          

Interest Oct 1 to Dec 31, 2014 12/31/14 843,045.07     9,562.21          

Interest Jan 1 to Mar 31, 2015 03/31/15 843,045.07     9,354.34          

Interest Apr 1 to Jun 30, 2015 06/30/15 843,045.07     9,458.27          

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/15 added to loan balance 37,937.03       880,982.10     37,937.03        

Interest Jul 1 - Sept 30, 2015 09/30/15 880,982.10     9,992.51          

Interest Oct 1 to Dec 31, 2015 12/31/15 880,982.10     9,992.51          

Interest Jan 1 to Mar 31, 2016 03/31/16 880,982.10     9,883.90          

247-16-002185-DWL 51797 Fordham Drive 04/29/16 5,700.00        875,282.10     3,149.81          

247-16-002186-DWL 51872 Fordham Drive 05/06/16 5,700.00        869,582.10     755.38 

247-16-002605-DWL 51868 Fordham Drive 05/23/16 5,700.00        863,882.10     1,822.55          

Interest Apr 1 to Jun 30, 2016 06/30/16 863,882.10     4,047.23          

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/16 added to loan balance 39,643.88       903,525.98     39,643.88        

247-16-003617-DWL 51868 Trapper George Lane 07/08/16 5,700.00        897,825.98     891.15 

Interest Jul 8 - Sept 30, 2016 09/30/16 897,825.98     9,298.03          

Refund to Pahlisch Adjustment to Payments 12/31/16 (5,784.00)       903,609.98     

Interest Oct 1 - Dec 31, 2016 12/31/16 903,609.98     10,249.17        

247-17-000604-DWL 51864 Fordham Road 03/27/17 4,254.00        899,355.98     

247-17-000606-DWL 51848 Hollinshead Place 03/27/17 4,254.00        895,101.98     

Interest Jan 1 to Mar 27, 2017 03/27/17 895,101.98     9,580.74          

Interest Mar 28 to Mar 31, 2017 03/31/17 895,101.98     441.42 

247-17-001033-DWL 51895 Trapper George Lane 04/05/17 4,254.00        890,847.98     

247-17-001034-DWL 51852 Hollinshead Place 04/05/17 4,254.00        886,593.98     

247-17-001035-DWL 16506 Charlotte Day Drive 04/05/17 4,254.00        882,339.98     

247-17-001037-DWL 51803 Fordham Road 04/05/17 4,254.00        878,085.98     

Interest Apr 1 to June 30, 2017 06/30/17 878,085.98     9,310.12          

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/17 added to loan balance 39,770.63       917,856.61     39,770.63        

Interest Jul 1 - Sept 30, 2017 09/30/17 917,856.61     10,410.76        

2018/04 457 CDD 10/16/17 4,254.00        913,602.61     1,810.57          

16537 Charlotte Day 11/09/17 4,254.00        909,348.61     2,703.26          

51840 Hollingshead Pl 11/16/17 4,254.00        905,094.61     784.78 

51836 Hollingshead Pl 11/21/17 4,254.00        900,840.61     557.94 

Interest 11/21-12/31 12/31/17 900,840.61     4,442.50          

16507 Charlotte Day Drive 01/04/18 4,254.00        896,586.61     444.25 

16525 Charlotte Day Drive 01/04/18 4,254.00        892,332.61     - 

51832 Hollinshead Place 01/16/18 4,615.00        887,717.61     1,320.16          

51827 Fordham Drive 01/31/18 4,615.00        883,102.61     1,641.67          

51828 Hollinshead Place 03/02/18 4,615.00        878,487.61     3,266.27          

16513 Charlotte Day Dr 03/22/18 4,615.00        873,872.61     2,166.13          

16531 Charlotte Day Dr 03/29/18 4,615.00        869,257.61     754.16 

16501 Charlotte Day Dr 04/09/18 4,615.00        864,642.61     1,178.86          

Housing Works Apt Complex 04/16/18 95,052.00      769,590.61     746.20 

51809 Fordham Road 06/25/18 4,615.00        764,975.61     6,641.67          

Interest April 16-June 30, 2018 06/30/18 764,975.61     471.56 

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/18 added to loan balance 39,340.74       804,316.35     

51815 Fordham Road 09/10/18 4,615.00        799,701.35     7,139.68          

51833 Fordham Road 09/10/18 4,615.00        795,086.35     - 

51856 Trapper George 10/16/18 4,615.00        790,471.35     3,528.88          

Interest Oct 17-Dec 31 12/31/18 790,471.35     7,406.61          

790,471.35     

790,471.35     

Accrued Interest - through 6/30/19 added to loan balance 18,075.17       808,546.52     

TOTALS 883,287.94    1,691,834.46  808,546.52     

RECAP:

Principal 1,109,801.01  

Capitalized Interest (through December 31, 2018) 582,033.45     

Repayments (883,287.94)    

Balance at December 31, 2018 808,546.52     

C:\Users\mbethel\Desktop\LPSSD Note 12-31-2018



Beautification 
and 

Revitalization

Effective 
Communication

Community 
Safety

Essential 
Infrastructure

Fiscal 
Responsibility

Economic 
Development

Provide Quality 
Services

DEPA
RTM

EN
T

O
BJEC

TIVES
A

dm
inistration

O
ngoing

Prom
ptly respond

 to citizen inquiries. 
X

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

C
ontinue to evaluate C

ity w
id

e operations.
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Enhance relationships w
ith other agencies.

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

M
aintain com

m
unity calend

ar.
X

X

O
ngoing

C
ontinue to review

 and
 upd

ate w
ebsite.

X
X

X
O

ngoing
C

ond
uct annual utility custom

er survey. 
X

X
X

TBD
Hold

 an annual "State of the C
ity" event.

X
X

A
nticipated

 start 
d

ate in M
arch 

2019

Start W
ickiup Junction O

D
O

T refinem
ent 

plan.
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

C
od

ification of m
unicipal cod

e.
X

X
C

om
pleted

C
reation of Storefront A

ssistant Program
.

X
X

X
X

X
C

om
pleted

/D
id

 
not receive

Pursue Safe Routes to Schools grant 
fund

ing.
X

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

C
ontinue active cod

e enforcem
ent.

X
X

X
X

X
C

om
pleted

 &
 

O
ngoing

Stream
line perm

its and
 services.

X
X

X

C
O

UN
C

IL G
O

A
LS 2019-2020 

C
om

m
unity Developm

ent

1

15



Beautification 
and 

Revitalization

Effective 
Communication

Community 
Safety

Essential 
Infrastructure

Fiscal 
Responsibility

Economic 
Development

Provide Quality 
Services

DEPA
RTM

EN
T

O
BJEC

TIVES

C
O

UN
C

IL G
O

A
LS 2019-2020 

O
ngoing

Plan and
 save for bike/ped

estrian path 
and

 am
enities.

X
X

X
X

X

O
ngoing

Increase available ind
ustrial build

ing 
space in La Pine.

X
X

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Establish and
 im

plem
ent local incentive(s) 

program
(s) for trad

ed
 sector business.

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Proactively recruit new
 ind

ustry to the La 
Pine Ind

ustrial Park w
hil supporting existing 

ind
ustry expansion.

X
X

X

O
ngoing

C
ontinue com

m
unity ed

ucation about 
econom

ic d
evelopm

ent.
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Increase num
ber of land

 sales, leases and
 

options on publicly ow
ned

 ind
ustrial 

property.
X

X
X

X
Finance

O
ngoing

M
aintain 10-15%

 contingencies in each 
fund

.
X

X
X

X

C
om

pleted

C
reate transparent, easy-to-und

erstand
 

m
onthly financial statem

ents that are 
available to the public.

X
X

X

O
ngoing

A
ssure that the C

ity is leveraging grants 
and

 loans at the best rates possible.
X

X
X

X
X

X

Econom
ic Developm

ent

2



Beautification 
and 

Revitalization

Effective 
Communication

Community 
Safety

Essential 
Infrastructure

Fiscal 
Responsibility

Economic 
Development

Provide Quality 
Services

DEPA
RTM

EN
T

O
BJEC

TIVES

C
O

UN
C

IL G
O

A
LS 2019-2020 

O
ngoing

C
reate and

 m
aintain strong reserves.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

O
ngoing

Und
erstand

 the true life of C
ity's 

infrastructure assets and
 prepare for cost 

replacem
ent.

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Explore program
s to better serve citizen 

financial need
s.

X
X

X

O
ngoing

C
ontinue to im

prove the bud
get process 

and
 d

ocum
ent.

X
X

X
Hum

an Resources

O
ngoing

Encourage professional d
evelopm

ent.
X

X
X

O
ngoing

C
ross-train staff.

X
X

X
O

ngoing
C

ontinue to m
onitor internal controls.

X
X

X

O
ngoing

Start d
esign w

ork for W
ater Im

provem
ent 

and
 Expansion Project.

X
X

X
X

X
X

C
om

pleted

C
om

plete W
ater Rights and

 M
itigation 

A
ssessm

ent to prepare for present and
 

future need
s.

X
X

X
X

X

C
om

pleted
Im

plem
ent new

 m
eter read

ing 
technology.

X
X

X
O

ngoing
C

ontinue to assess staffing levels.
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

Public W
orks - W

ater

3



Beautification 
and 

Revitalization

Effective 
Communication

Community 
Safety

Essential 
Infrastructure

Fiscal 
Responsibility

Economic 
Development

Provide Quality 
Services

DEPA
RTM

EN
T

O
BJEC

TIVES

C
O

UN
C

IL G
O

A
LS 2019-2020 

O
ngoing

C
ontinue to id

entify and
 im

plem
ent 

m
aintenance program

s, such as hyd
rant 

m
aintenance and

 valve turning.
X

X
X

X
O

ngoing
Increase staff certification in w

ater.
X

X
X

O
ngoing

C
om

plete d
esign for w

ork for W
astew

ater  
Expansion and

 Im
provem

ent Project.
X

X
X

X
X

C
om

pleted
Im

plem
ent a pilot program

 for septic tank 
m

aintenance.
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Upgrad
e and

 plan for aging infrastructure 
com

ponents, specifically lift stations (1st St., 
N

ew
berry and

 Ind
ustrial Park).

X
X

X
X

X
O

ngoing
C

ontinue to assess staffing levels.
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Integrate new
 equipm

ent and
 technology 

to im
prove the collection system

. 
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Increase staff certification in w
astew

ater 
collection/treatm

ent.
X

X
X

C
om

pleted
/ 

O
ngoing

Land
scaping of W

estsid
e Streetscape 

Project, includ
ing HW

Y 97 from
 1st St. 

through 6th St. 
X

X
X

X

Public W
orks - Streets

Public W
orks - Sew

er

4



Beautification 
and 

Revitalization

Effective 
Communication

Community 
Safety

Essential 
Infrastructure

Fiscal 
Responsibility

Economic 
Development

Provide Quality 
Services

DEPA
RTM

EN
T

O
BJEC

TIVES

C
O

UN
C

IL G
O

A
LS 2019-2020 

C
om

pleted
C

hip seal project for Riley D
rive, Betty Lane 

and
 Preble W

ay.
X

X
X

X

C
om

pleted

4th St. im
provem

ents to prom
ote 

connectivity for the future Transit/C
ity 

C
enter Project.

X
X

X
X

X
O

ngoing
C

ontinue to assess staffing levels.
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

D
evelop a road

 m
aintenance plan.

X
X

X
X

O
ngoing

A
ssess and

 plan for future operations of the 
cem

etery.
X

X
X

O
ngoing

Install an inform
ational/historical kiosk at 

the entrance.
X

X
X

X
X

X
O

ngoing
C

lear new
 sections for future expansion.

X
X

O
ngoing

O
rganize annual clean-up d

ay.
X

X
X

X
X

Public W
orks - C

em
etery

5


	Agenda
	6 - Consent Agenda
	7 - American Leadership Forum Payment
	8 - Public Works Committee Appointments
	10 - Community Funding Request
	12 - Edco MOU Revision
	13 - Expenditure of Unused CDBG Funds
	14 - Update on Sewer District Loan with Deschutes County
	15 - Council Goals FY 2019-20



